
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l i n co ln sh i re i l . gov  

AGENDA 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, May 22, 2017 

Immediately following Regular Village Board Meeting 

Reasonable accommodations / auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with disabilities to effectively 
participate in any public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 
hours in advance if you need special accommodations to attend. 

The Committee of the Whole will not proceed past 10:30 p.m. unless there is a consensus of the majority of the 
Trustees to do so. Citizens wishing to address the Board on agenda items may speak when the agenda item is open, 
prior to Board discussion. 

CALL TO ORDER 

1.0 ROLL CALL 

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
2.1 Acceptance of the May 8, 2017 Special Committee of the Whole – Town 

Meeting Minutes 

2.2 Acceptance of the May 8, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 

3.11  Continued Consideration of an Amendment to the Existing Special 
Use Permit for a Planned Unit Development for an Attached Single-
Family Residential Townhome Community to Revise Previously 
Approved Final Development Plans and Plat for a Revised Unit Mix 
(Pulte Homes) 

3.12 Consideration of a Property Owner Request to Amend Existing 
Land Use Covenants for 100 Brookwood Lane (Elango 
Sampandam and Ramadevi Loganathan) 

3.2 Finance and Administration 
3.21 Consideration of Authorizing the Village Manager to 

Execute Documentation to Secure a Final Electricity Price for 
Various Village Electricity Accounts (Village of Lincolnshire) 

3.3 Public Works 
3.31 Consideration and Discussion of Use of Remaining Illinois 

Transportation Enhancement Program (ITEP) Funds (Village of 
Lincolnshire)  



Page 2 
AGENDA –Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 22, 2017 

3.32 Consideration and Discussion of a Corporate Center Tree Removal 
Project (Village of Lincolnshire) 

3.33 Consideration of a Village of Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire Sports 
Association Request to Use Village Streets for Annual Fourth of 
July Parade and Race and Granting a Waiver of the Village Street 
Usage Policy Cash Bond Requirement (Village of Lincolnshire / 
Lincolnshire Sports Association)  

3.4 Public Safety 
3.5 Parks and Recreation 
3.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
7.0 ADJOURNMENT 



 
O  
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
2.1 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Town Meeting 
Monday, May 8, 2017   

Present: 
Mayor Brandt     Trustee Feldman (arrived at 6:40 p.m.) 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock (arrived at 6:53 p.m.) 
Trustee McDonough (arrived at 6:50 p.m.) Trustee Servi (arrived at 6:45 p.m.) 
Trustee Leider    Village Clerk Mastandrea    
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Chief of Police Leonas   Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson 
 Public Works Director Woodbury  Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Economic Development Coordinator  Economic Development Director Letendre 
  Zozulya    Assistant Public Works Director/Village 

Engineer Dittrich  
          

Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 6:38 p.m.  
 
2.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

2.1 Town Meeting 
Mayor Brandt noted the Roll Call would be suspended until the remaining 
Board members arrive, so Staff will start with their presentation. 
 
Village Manager Burke introduced the presentation noting the last few years 
staff has taken the opportunity to present a “year in review” at the town 
meeting. 
 
2.11  Presentation 

Village Manager Burke started the presentation with personnel changes 
over the past year. 
 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson provided a presentation 
highlighting the Water Meter Project, an update to utility billing 
processes, progress on updating the chapter of Village Code pertaining 
to Finance, and an update to the 5-year financial forecast. Finance 
Director/Treasurer Peterson provided an update to Grant Accountability 
and Transparency Act (GATA). Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson 
continued the presentation highlighting continued goals for 2017 
including Credit Card acceptance, document retention/destruction, 
Accounts Payable and transparency on the website, and streamlining 
finance processes. 

 
Public Works Director Woodbury provided a presentation highlighting 
the Public Works accomplishments in 2016 including construction 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Special Committee of the Whole Town Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

projects, leaf pick-up being contracted out to Waste Management, 
Automated Meter Reading Project, water fountain testing, Community 
Rating System update, and Stormwater Management. Public Works 
worked with School District 103 to develop an education program to 
address concerns of the Illinois Arborist Community to teach students 
tree identification, tree value, and proper planning techniques. Staff 
collaborated with Sprague School for the 2016 Arbor Day Event. Public 
Works Director Woodbury provided an update on the dead/hazardous 
trees along Riverwoods Road and noted the Tree Preservation 
Ordinance update was approved in April. Public Works Director 
Woodbury highlighted improvements performed in the parks, Village 
Hall roof replacement and upgrades to the fitness room at the Village 
Hall.  

  
Chief of Police Leonas provided a presentation highlighting Police goals 
and accomplishments in 2016 including new radio system, new video 
camera security system at the Village Hall, evidence room inventory, 
and individual awards. Chief of Police Leonas noted he conducted a 
climate survey when he arrived in August of 2016 and developed a work 
plan regarding new initiatives & emphasis going forward as a result of 
the survey.  
 

 Resident Marla Baskin asked Chief of Police Leonas to elaborate on 
why he thought the Lincolnshire Police Department was different than 
other Police Departments. Chief of Police Leonas stated the 
Lincolnshire Police staff is well trained, for the population, noting 
population makes up more than the residents but also the corporate 
center and the businesses along with the motoring public. Chief of 
Police Leonas stated staff is not just working to write tickets and make 
arrests but also to interweave into the fabric of the community.  

 
 Ms. Baskin asked if the Police patrol the Forest Preserve and utilize 

bicycles to get around the community. Chief of Police Leonas stated 
staff has looked at ways to improve services and a bicycle unit will be 
utilized at Food Truck Friday this year and will also be utilized 
throughout the Village during the summer. Chief of Police Leonas noted 
the Forest Preserve and County patrol the Forest Preserve paths with 
assistance from the Lincolnshire Police Department. Ms. Baskin asked if 
the community would consider putting a phone system on the Forest 
Preserve path for safety. Chief of Police Leonas stated the paths are not 
in Lincolnshire’s jurisdiction and noted cell phones are utilized by the 
majority of individuals. Trustee Leider asked if there was an emergency 
button located at North Park to notify the Police. Public Works Director 
Woodbury noted there is an AD Unit but no emergency notification at 
North Park. Mayor Brandt stated she would reach out to Anne Main who 
is the Lake County Forest Preserve President with concerns raised by 
Ms. Baskin.  

 
 Chief of Police Leonas continued his presentation highlighting new 

employee committees, re-branding the Police patch, future goals, and 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Special Committee of the Whole Town Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

personnel.  
 
 Resident Harry Goldsholl asked if it was possible to increase the safety 

level of pedestrians crossing Riverwoods Road at marked crosswalks. 
Chief of Police Leonas stated the Police Department is working with 
Public Works, the school district, and community volunteers to try and 
resolve the crosswalk situation. Chief of Police Leonas noted the Lake 
County Department of Transportation recently installed signs and he 
wrote a grant to fund additional signage which would include LED lights 
so when cars are approaching from a distance, the crosswalks will be 
more visible. Mayor Brandt noted Riverwoods Road is the jurisdiction of 
the County, and due to an incident, there will be a new crosswalk going 
in at Daniel Wright. Mayor Brandt noted there will be a pedestrian path 
going up when the Mons property is developed which will connect to 
Daniel Wright. Mayor Brandt stated Lincolnshire Police has upped the 
patrol in the area and the Village is working on resolving the issues with 
the school and county.  

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development 

(AVM/CED) Director Letendre provided a presentation highlighting 
Village Special Events, Community & Economic Development personnel 
changes, annexation activity, Economic Development Strategy Plan 
update, approved and upcoming development projects, and Food Truck 
Fridays. 

 
 Village Manager Burke provided a presentation highlighting the new 

Village website, continued increases in use of technology to provide 
services, financial strength of the Village, 2017 Budget items, 5-year 
financial projections, and projects moving forward.   

  
2.12 Resident Comments 
 Ms. Leslie Shulhafer, resident at 2 Coventry Lane asked if Public Works 

was aware of the 30 year old engineering study at Lincolnshire Creek. 
Village Engineer Wally Dittrich stated staff was aware of this study.  

 
 Ms. Shulhafer asked if the Village is in the process of replacing heavily 

wooded areas with ornamental landscaping and noted concern since 
Lincolnshire is known for wooded areas. Mayor Brandt noted the project 
on Olde Half Day Road is an ITEP Grant project which is not yet 
complete; there will be more plantings installed. Ms. Shulhafer stated 
landscaping is great but did not like the fact that the woods were being 
removed on Olde Half Day Road. Mayor Brandt stated what was 
removed was not woods but invasive buckthorn and dead trees. Ms. 
Shulhafer noted concern about safety on the path. Public Works 
Director Woodbury noted staff received many complaints about the area 
not being safe due to the buckthorn; the desire by many was for this 
area to be opened up in order to feel safe. Ms. Shulhafer asked why an 
area by the canoe launch was cleared out. Public Works Director 
Woodbury noted there is path restoration in progress and dead ash tree 
removal as part of a Boy Scout project in which six park benches were 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Special Committee of the Whole Town Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

recently installed in this location.  
 
 Ms. Marla Baskin, resident at 79 Oakwood Lane noted she is in 

approval of the work going on at Olde Half Day Road but noted concern 
with the landscaping being installed as a result. Ms. Baskin stated many 
residential homes sales are resulting in removal of large trees and 
landscaping and are being replaced with huge homes. Ms. Baskin 
asked if there is any mission to keep the unique style of the Village. 
Mayor Brandt stated there will be a bulk regulations discussion on the 
Committee of the Whole meeting later this evening.  Mayor Brandt 
noted the Village Board has concerns with the size of homes going up 
and the ability to post a bond and take down many trees. The Board 
does not desire to manicure or change Lincolnshire.  

 
 Public Works Director Woodbury provided information regarding the 

new plantings on Olde Half Day Road and informed Ms. Baskin that the 
plans for the plantings were made available online to view. Ms. Baskin 
asked if the Village could take advantage of the contractors they hire to 
get rid of some of the invasive materials and dead trees. Village 
Manager Burke noted staff has solicited bids to landscapers and tree 
removal companies to obtain pricing for residential use, and the 
contractors have not been willing to include residential unit prices in 
their bid. 

 
 Mr. Harry Goldsholl, resident at 315 Whytgate asked about dead trees 

in utility easements. Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 
Dittrich noted any easement gives the utility owner the right to access 
the area for maintenance of the specific utility.  However, the owners of 
property where the easement exists are responsible for what is above-
ground and the maintenance of this area. 

 
 Mr. Goldsholl asked if the Arthur J. Greene project is moving forward. 

Village Manager Burke stated the final plat of subdivision is still pending. 
Arthur J. Green is waiting on Lake County Highway Department 
approval regarding their obligation on access to Riverwoods Road as 
well as Stormwater Management. Mr. Goldsholl noted concern with 
water runoff issues. 

 
 Mr. Barry Pechter, resident of 17 Westwood Lane stated he had issues 

with the leaf pickup and putting leaves on his grass because it kills the 
grass. Mr. Pechter recommended leaf pickup every week instead of 
every other week. Public Works Director Woodbury stated putting the 
leaves in the street blocks storm sewers and would violate Village Code. 
Ms. Baskin stated she used to live in Skokie and noted concern with leaf 
pickup and stated when she lived in Skokie, leaves were placed in the 
street and pickup was provided weekly. Trustee Feldman noted concern 
with the program and asked staff to look into the cost of weekly pickup. 
Village Manager Burke noted staff will research weekly pickups with 
Waste Management and report back. 

 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Special Committee of the Whole Town Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

 Mr. Caden Dimatteo, resident at 4 Briarwood Lane asked for the status 
of the new crosswalk at Daniel Wright at Riverwoods Road. Public 
Works Director Woodbury stated the County is working with Daniel 
Wright on a signalized crosswalk. Mayor Brandt updated the resident on 
a meeting she had with staff, Trustee Leider, and Daniel Wright noting 
the Village recommendation was to move the crosswalk to the entrance 
of the school and to have a crossing guard present more often.  
 

  ROLL CALL 
 Village Clerk Mastandrea called the Roll. 

 
3.0 ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee McDonough moved and Trustee Feldman seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 
the meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
2.2 

MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Monday, May 8, 2017   
Present: 
Mayor Brandt      Trustee Feldman 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock 
Trustee McDonough    Trustee Servi  
Trustee Leider     Village Clerk Mastandrea (left at 9:55 pm)    
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Finance Director/Treasurer Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury (left at 9:03 pm) 
(left at 9:03 pm) 
Chief of Police Leonas   Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village  Economic Development Director Letendre                   

Engineer Dittrich (left at 9:03 pm) Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya 
         

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 8:53 p.m. and Village Clerk Mastandrea called the 
Roll. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

2.1 Acceptance of the April 24, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 
 

The minutes of the April 24, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting were 
approved as submitted. 

 
3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
  

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 
3.11  Consideration of Village Permit Fee Waiver per Section 5-3-2(A) of 

the Lincolnshire Village Code (Ascension of Our Lord Greek 
Orthodox Church) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development 

(AVM/CED) Director Letendre provided a summary of the request by 
Our Lord Greek Orthodox Church for Village permit fee waiver prior to 
permit and construction. 

 
 Trustee Hancock asked if the project has already been reviewed. 

Village Manager Burke stated the project was reviewed and approved 
approximately 18 months ago. Village Manager Burke noted the Church 
is currently working with the County for lane configuration access off of 
Riverwoods Road.  

 
There was a consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

 
Mayor Brandt moved up Public Work Items 3.31 and 3.32 on the Agenda 
 

3.2 Public Works  
3.31 Consideration of Professional Engineering Services Contract with 

Ciorba Group, Inc. at a cost not to Exceed $36,650 to Evaluate 
Alternate Water Supply Options (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich briefly 

summarized the consideration of a professional engineering services 
contract with Ciorba Group, Inc. at a cost not to exceed $36,650 to 
evaluate alternate water supply options.  

 
 Trustee McDonough stated his opinion that this seems to be a lot of 

money for what would be a project that could be done by staff checking 
other sources. Assistant Public works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich 
noted it is more than checking for possible water sources; Ciorba 
Group, Inc. will have to check our water model data and re-run 
Lincolnshire data with inputs from possible alternative water sources 
then model that with Village infrastructure required to connect to those 
sources.  

 
 Trustee McDonough asked what other sources Lincolnshire could get 

water from other than Highland Park. Assistant Public Works 
Director/Village Engineer Dittrich stated Lincolnshire could get water 
from Buffalo Grove who gets their water from the Northwest Water 
Commission or the Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency 
(CLCJAWA) which is also a Lake Michigan water source.  

 
 Trustee McDonough asked what the study will tell us. Assistant Public 

Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich stated the study will tell us what 
the cost would be to build the infrastructure to connect to an alternate 
water supply and what modifications would be needed.  

 
 Trustee McDonough stated Highland Park has been our water supplier 

for many years, so why would the Village seek to get water elsewhere. 
Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer Dittrich stated this has 
been in the Villages Capital Plan for some time and has been identified 
by staff as a priority. Village Manager Burke stated this would not be a 
new water source but would be a source to use in an event of a major 
water main failure between the transmission main from Highland Park to 
Lincolnshire. Village Manager Burke noted almost every winter 
Lincolnshire is put on notice of ice forming at Highland Park’s intake 
pipe due to how shallow it is. Village Manager Burke provided further 
information related to why the analysis would be beneficial. 

 
 There was a consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

3.32 Consideration of Award of Contract for the Replacement of the 
Westside Reservoir Emergency Generator with Patten Power 
Systems, Elmhurst, IL in an Amount not to Exceed $165,000 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Public Works Director Woodbury summarized the proposed contract for 

the replacement of the Westside Reservoir Emergency Generator with 
Patten Power Systems, Elmhurst, IL in an Amount not to exceed 
$165,000. Public Works Director Woodbury noted the current generator 
is over 34 years old and parts are no longer available. The EPA requires 
a backup generator.  

 
 Trustee McDonough asked if this is the low bidder for the state project 

and if it made sense for staff could go outside the cooperative to get 
better pricing. Public Works Director Woodbury stated Patten is part of 
the National Joint Powers Cooperative, and they are the low bidder for 
these types of generators. Staff tried looking at other sources and found 
this is the best price.  

 
 Trustee Leider asked if alternate locations for the new generator were 

considered since there is a price related to removal and installation due 
to the limited space. Public Works Director Woodbury stated the 
location of the new generator has been considered but the location of 
the diesel pump is on one side and the chlorine pumps are on the other 
side so there is no other location for it to be placed.  

 
 There was a consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

3.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use (Continued) 
3.12 Continued Discussions of Design/Bulk Regulations (Village of 

Lincolnshire)   
 
 Village Manager Burke complimented AVM/CED Director Letendre, 

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya, and Building Official 
Jesse who researched and pulled a lot of data for the Board as a result 
of past meetings and Board direction. Village Manager Burke stated 
since so much data is being provided, staff is not looking for a final 
decision but for further direction to continue to refine.  

 
AVM/CED Director Letendre provided a detailed summary of the data 
collected by staff on Design/Bulk Regulations as directed by the Board. 
Staff is recommending a sliding scale for maximum floor area ratio by 
zoning district.  
 
Trustee Hancock asked what FAR (Floor Area Ratio) had to do with 
homes square footage. AVM/CED Director Letendre stated FAR is the 
homes square footage based on the lot size; it is a percentage of the lot 
size the home takes up. Trustee Hancock asked how FAR is calculated 
for a ranch style home versus a two-story home. AVM/CED Director 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

Letendre stated FAR is calculated as above-ground, livable space. 
Trustee Hancock asked what the logic between a consolidated lot of 
40,000 square feet compared to something that is 30,000 square feet; 
why would the proposed allowable home size be smaller. AVM/CED 
Director Letendre noted it is an attempt to create a disincentive for a 
larger home on a consolidated lot. Trustee Hancock asked why the 
Village would want to provide a disincentive for larger homes from being 
built. Village Attorney Simon stated if all the homes on a block are small 
lots then generally the size of the homes on the block are going to be 
smaller but if you combine two lots and strictly apply a linear FAR, this 
will result in a much bigger house which changes the character of the 
block. Trustee Grujanac noted this has happened in her neighborhood 
and it effectively creates a wall around other, smaller homes.  
 
Trustee Hancock thought the goal was to address the large houses on 
the large lots and not a larger house on smaller lots. AVM/CED Director 
Letendre stated staff addressed all lot sizes with a sliding scale based 
upon an evaluation in all districts in order to take a holistic look at the 
entire community. Trustee Hancock asked why the first tier was 
knocked down from 25% to 21%. AVM/CED Director Letendre stated in 
looking at a sliding scale staff decided to abandon the current 25% cap, 
starting at a lower percentage minimizing impacts on current homes. 
Village Manager Burke stated staff completed research and developed 
recommendation based upon Board comments regarding keeping the 
character in each zoning district, so moving forward was based on the 
current built environment with a sliding scale that would fit. Trustee 
Hancock noted his opinion is that this would be too restrictive and 
thought the first tier needed to be readdressed.  
 
Trustee Grujanac noted if you live in a small home and all the homes 
going in around you are much bigger the character of a block changes.  
 
Trustee Feldman stated she was not in favor of the Ordinance noting a 
lot of the inventory in Lincolnshire is old and by putting restrictions on 
the home size, this will stop progress. Trustee Hancock noted there is a 
difference between progress and something way oversized. Village 
Attorney Simon noted staff did address limitations on the larger lots as 
part of the sliding scale reporting and recommendation. Trustee 
Hancock noted his desire is for minor changes on the bottom end for 
smaller lots.  
 
Mayor Brandt asked staff to look at setbacks in R3 for restrictions.  Staff 
replied setbacks were reviewed and not recommended for change in the 
R3 District, as setbacks control home size and location on smaller lots, 
while a stricter FAR for larger lots is proposed to control size in larger 
R2A and R2 Districts  
 
Trustee Hancock suggested the Architectural Review Board (ARB) 
review new structures going up so as not to put up rectangular boxes. 
AVM/CED Director Letendre stated staff is proposing for ARB to review 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

the proposed changes to the Ordinance and provide input on their 
review of new homes/additions prior to final Board approval. Village 
Attorney Simon stated the last time the Bulk Regulations were revised 
there were rules added to prohibit a “box” house.  
 
Mayor Brandt asked what the maximum height was in R3. Economic 
Development Coordinator Zozulya stated maximum height in R3 is 
either two story or 30 feet and confirmed the maximum height goes up 
in R2. 
 
AVM/CED Director Letendre provided a review of proposed Bulk 
Regulations for tear-downs and District R2A.  
 
Trustee Hancock noted his opinion would be for the ARB review 
elements on a new home; more than two different types of materials 
proposed for the exterior of a home to make sure all elements worked 
well together and review of corner lots to have two front facing sides. A 
conversation regarding what types of reviews would be feasible 
regarding workload for the ARB followed. Trustee Hancock suggested if 
a new home or an addition would exceed a maximum size, it would 
need to be reviewed by the Zoning Board and the ARB. Trustee 
McDonough was in agreement with Zoning Board and ARB review of 
projects and suggested the Board provide them with standards for 
review such as discussed. 
 
Trustee Leider suggested the Board further review what is presented for 
more time to provide feedback to staff.  
 
A conversation regarding ARB & Zoning Board review followed. Mayor 
Brandt suggested reviewing how other communities handle Advisory 
Board reviews.   
 
There was a consensus of the Board to further review the information 
and report to staff for further updates. 

  
3.3 Finance and Administration  

 
3.4 Public Works  

3.31 Consideration of Professional Engineering Services Contract with 
Ciorba Group, Inc. at a cost not to Exceed $36,650 to Evaluate 
Alternate Water Supply Options (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
3.32 Consideration of Award of Contract for the Replacement of the 

Westside Reservoir Emergency Generator with Patten Power 
Systems, Elmhurst, IL in an Amount not to Exceed $165,000 
(Village of Lincolnshire)  

 
   Items 3.31 & 3.32 were moved up on the agenda. 

  
3.5 Public Safety 



Page 6 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
May 8, 2017 
 

3.6 Parks and Recreation 
3.7 Judiciary and Personnel 

  
4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
5.0 NEW BUSINESS  

 
6.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Trustee McDonough moved and Trustee Feldman seconded the motion to go into 
Executive Session for the purpose of discussing Real Estate – Sale of Property. The 
roll call vote was as follows:  AYES: Trustees McDonough, Feldman, Leider, Grujanac, 
Hancock, and Servi.  NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  The Mayor 
declared the motion carried and the Board went into Executive Session at 10:05 p.m. 
and came out of Executive Session at 10:13 p.m. 
 

7.0 ADJOURNMENT 
Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee McDonough seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 
the meeting adjourned at 10:14 p.m. 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



 

Agenda Item 

      3.11, COW 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Committee of the Whole 
May 22, 2017 

 
Subject:  Camberley Club Townhome Planned Unit Development  

Action Requested: Consideration of an Amendment to the Existing Special Use for a 
Planned Unit Development for an Attached Single Family Residential 
Townhome Community to Revise Previously Approved Final 
Development Plans and Plat for a Revised Unit Mix 

Petitioner:  Pulte Homes 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator  
Department of Community & Economic Development 

Referred To:  Village Board 

 
Background: 

 On April 12, 2017, the Village Board held a Public Hearing regarding a Major Amendment to 
Ordinance #16-3391-118 for the Camberley Club Planned Unit Development (PUD) to 
revise previously approved Final Development Plans and 
Final Plat regarding a revised unit mix and minor change 
to approved lot lines. 
 

 At the April 12th meeting, the Board provided feedback and 
asked the petitioner to return to a future meeting with a 
revised proposal. They requested Pulte revise their 
request to increase building separation; eliminate some 
Terrace buildings from the unit swap proposal; and speak 
with School Districts 103 and 125 representatives about 
student population impacts due to the current proposal.  

 
Revised Proposal:  

 Unit Mix: Pulte proposes a revised unit mix in Buildings 4, 
5, 9, 19 and 23 (see attached map). They have eliminated one unit from Building #4 since 
the April 12th Committee of the Whole meeting, bringing the overall subdivision unit count 
from 86 to 85. The revised unit mix is 63 Villas and 22 Terraces. 
  

 Bedroom Increase: The developer eliminated the 4th bedroom option for Villas, maintaining 
all Terrace and Villa units within the five buildings in the proposal at 3 bedrooms.  
 

 School Input: Pulte indicated they initiated conversations with School Districts 103 and 125 
and will provide their input prior to Monday’s meeting.   
 

 Building Separation: As shown in the below table, the building separation has been 
increased since the 4/12/17 COW plans, except for Side A in Building #9 (a reduction of 
3.35’) which, according to Pulte, was needed to more evenly distribute the spacing on both 
sides of the building. See table on following page. 

 



 

Agenda Item 

      3.11, COW 

 
 

 
Unit Mix Bldg #4 Bldg #5 Bldg #9 Bldg #19 Bldg #23 

 

 Side Side Side A Side B Side Rear Rear 

5/22/17 COW 
Proposed Plans 

63 Villas  
22 Terraces 36.50’ 36.50’ 37.58’ 31.48’ 83.63’ 62.71’ 62.88’ 

4/12/17 COW 
Proposed Plans 

64 Villas 
22 Terraces 25.09' 25.09' 40.93' 28.46' 83.63’ 62.71' 62.88' 

Previously 
Approved Plans 

45 Villas 
41 Terraces 36.03' 36.03' 41.35' 35.66' 89.86’ 61.33' 62.64' 

 
Recommendation:   
Consideration of an amendment to Ordinance #16-3391-118 regarding the proposed unit mix 
change, and placement on the June 12, 2017 Consent Agenda for approval.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Location map, prepared by staff.  

 Petitioner’s cover letter and presentation packet dated May 16, 2017. 

 Draft ordinance amending the Camberley Club PUD, prepared by the Village Attorney.  

 April 12, 2017 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes.  
 

Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole (preliminary evaluation): March 20, 2017 

Committee of the Whole (public hearing):  April 12, 2017 

Committee of the Whole (continued consideration & discussion): May 22, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V:\Subdivisions\Camberley_Club\UnitTypeAmendment\5_22_17_COW_Cont\2017_05_22_COW_CamberleyClubPul
te.doc 



810

890

875

143145

920

141

901

318

30
131

3

308

31
0

312

4

31
1

306 304

201

30
2

30
7

3 30
5

209

30
3

300

31
5

211

316

30
9

31
4

32
3

343

901

31
9

336

337

32
5

506
338

33
5

328

340

367
502

353
359

341
334

33
3

324 326

31
7

32
9

320

361

345

32
1

330

347

35
7

32
7

35
5

32
2

363
365

33
1

332
349

351

50
4

205

203-207

900
910

R4

O/Ia

R3

B2

B2

O/Ib

O/Ib

R1

MILWAUKEE AVE

RIVERSIDE RD

RIVERSHIRE LN

TOWER PKWY

RIVERSHIRE LN

°0 290 580145 FeetVillage Boundary
Zoning Districts
Building

Water Feature
Parcel

!
!

! !

!
!

!!! Subject Location

Sedgebrook CCRC

Marriott Resort/
Craines Landsing Golf Course

Rivershire

!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

tzozulya
Typewritten text
Camberley Club Subdivision

tzozulya
Typewritten text
Milwaukee Ave & Riverside Rd





O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
3

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
2

0

.
2

8

7

 
A

C

R

E

S

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
3

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
3

O
U

T
L
O

T
 
3

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
6

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
7

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
5

0

.
2

6

7

 
A

C

R

E

S

O
U

T
L
O

T
 
9

O
U

T
L
O

T
 
8

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
4

O

U

T

L

O

T

 
4

D
A

T
E

 
:

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
N

O
.

TITLE :

1" = 100'

DSGN.

CHKD.

SCALE :

DWN.

NATURE OF REVISIONNO. DATE

S
H

E
E

T
1

EX140180-DIMENSION PLAN.DWG

LOT DEVELOPMENT PLAN

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
.
 
1
4
0
1
8
0

0
5

/
1

2
/
2

0
1

7

O
F

 
 
 
1

LD
P

CLIENT :

N

S

E
W

116 West Main Street, Suite 201

St. Charles, Illinois 60174

(630) 443-7755

CAMBERLEY CLUBPULTE HOMES
1901 N. ROSELLE ROAD
SCHAUMBURG, IL 60195

847-230-5400

HOME OWNERS PROPERTY

RESIDENTIAL LAND AREA

11.863 ACRES

14.630 ACRES

NET LAND AREA
19.017 ACRES

SITE DATA

PARKLAND TO BE DEDICATED TO THE VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE (OUTLOT 2):

R.O.W. TO BE DEDICATED TO IDOT (OUTLOT 8 & 9):

HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION PARCELS (OUTLOTS 1, 3-7):

(INCLUDES PRIVATE ROADWAY/UTILITY CORRIDOR & PARKLAND & OPENSPACE)

RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

0.287 AC.

0.763 AC.

11.933 AC.

7.084 AC.

20.067 AC.

GROSS LAND AREA:

LOT #
Square
Feet

Lot: 1 4,284

Lot: 2 3,453

Lot: 3 4,342

Lot: 4 4,090

Lot: 5 3,207

Lot: 6 3,216

Lot: 7 4,126

Lot: 8 4,139

Lot: 9 3,195

Lot: 10 4,079

Lot: 11 4,078

Lot: 12 3,150

Lot: 13 3,150

Lot: 14 4,078

Lot: 15 4,078

Lot: 16 3,168

Lot: 17 3,334

Lot: 18 5,658

Lot: 19 4,377

Lot: 20 3,140

Lot: 21 3,167

Lot: 22 4,188

Lot: 23 4,205

Lot: 24 3,335

Lot: 25 3,362

Lot: 26 4,324

Lot: 27 4,463

Lot: 28 3,333

Lot: 29 3,210

Lot: 30 4,080

Lot: 31 4,185

Lot: 32 2,721

Lot: 33 2,721

Lot: 34 4,448

Lot: 35 4,200

Lot: 36 2,765

Lot: 37 2,765

Lot: 38 3,964

Lot: 39 4,151

Lot: 40 2,756

Lot: 41 4,182

Lot: 42 4,942

Lot: 43 3,461

Lot: 44 3,225

Lot: 45
4,110

Lot: 46
4,134

Lot: 47
3,335

Lot: 48
4,573

Lot: 49
4,537

Lot: 50 3,176

Lot: 51 3,175

Lot: 52 4,133

Lot: 53 4,162

Lot: 54 3,180

Lot: 55 3,221

Lot: 56 4,505

Lot: 57 4,359

Lot: 58 3,050

Lot: 59 2,995

Lot: 60 3,794

Lot: 61 4,490

Lot: 62 2,344

Lot: 63 3,916

Lot: 64 3,814

Lot: 65 2,772

Lot: 66 4,267

Lot: 67 3,812

Lot: 68 2,670

Lot: 69 2,670

Lot: 70 3,806

Lot: 71 3,916

Lot: 72 2,344

Lot: 73 2,344

Lot: 74 3,714

Lot: 75 3,817

Lot: 76
2,670

Lot: 77 4,150

Lot: 78 3,812

Lot: 79
2,670

Lot: 80
2,670

Lot: 81
4,275

Lot: 82
3,800

Lot: 83
2,480

Lot: 84
2,536

Lot: 85
3,920

TOTAL UNITS:  85

LOT AREA CHART

OUTLOT AREA CHART



Camberley Club Townhomes of Lincolnshire
A PULTE HOMES COMMUNITY

Camberley Club | Bedroom Count
2BR 3BR 4BR 1st Floor MBR 1st Floor In Law Suite

Building 1 Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 2 Hawthorn 4 - 1st Floor In Law Suite x x

(Villas #3) Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 3 Stanton 2 x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 4 Fairfax x

(Villas #1) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 5 Stanton 2 x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 6 Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Terraces #1) Spencer x

Wembley x

Building 14 Fairfax x

(Villas #1) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 15 Hawthorn 4 - 1st Floor In Law Suite x x

(Villas #3) Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 16 Fairfax x

(Villas #2) Hawthorn x

Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Building 17 Wembley x

(Terraces #2) Spencer x

Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

Building 18 Fairfax x

(Villas #2) Hawthorn x

Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Building 19 Fairfax x

(Villas #1) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 22 Wembley x

(Terraces #4) Spencer x

Spencer x

Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

SD 103 TOTAL 1 37 7 8 2

2BR 3BR 4BR 1st Floor MBR 1st Floor In Law Suite

Building 7 Wembley x

(Terraces #4) Spencer x

Spencer x

Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

Building 8 Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Terraces #3) Spencer x

Spencer x

Wembley x

Building 9 Stanton 2 x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 10 Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 11 Hawthorn 4 - 1st Floor In Law Suite x x

(Villas #3) Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 12 Hawthorn 4 - 1st Floor In Law Suite x x

(Villas #3) Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 13 Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

Building 20 Hawthorn 4 - 1st Floor In Law Suite x x

(Villas #3) Stanton - 1st Floor MBR x x

Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Building 21 Chesdin - 1st Floor MBR x x

(Terraces #3) Spencer x

Spencer x

Wembley x

Building 23 Stanton 2 x

(Villas #4) Fairfax x

Hawthorn x

Fairfax x

SD 102 TOTAL 3 29 8 8 3

Fairfax

Stanton

Hawthorn

Hawthorn 4

Villas

Wembley

Spencer

Chesdin

Terraces

Lincoln-Prairie View
School District #103

SD 102 & SD 103 Boundary Line

Note:  The Terraces “Spencer” unit is a standard 
2 Bedroom Model, with an option as a 3 
Bedroom Model.  Pulte is projecting 50% of the 
buyers will select the 3 Bedroom option.

School District

45 11.57 3.89 DU/AC
# units densityacres

Aptakisic-Tripp Community 
Consolidation School District #102

40 7.44 5.38 DU/AC
# units densityacres

1

2

3 18

16

14

15

19 20
17

4

5

6

22

21

7

8

9

10

23

11

12

13

SD #103 SD #102

tzozulya
Typewritten text
Revised Bedroom Count 



Camberley Club Townhomes of Lincolnshire
A PULTE HOMES COMMUNITY

4

3

3
3

4

3
3

3

3

3
4

4

3

2

2

2

2

3

3

60

59

58

57

1 2

3

4
5 6

7

8
9

10

11 12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19

20
21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32
33

34

35

363738
394041

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

61
62 63

64 65

66

67
68

69
70

71

72
7374

757677

78
79

80
81

82
838485

3

3

3

3

2

3

1

1

2

2

1

Camberley Club | 
Sales Status/School Children

1

2

3 18

16

14

15

19
2017

4

5

6

22

21

7

8

8

9

10

23

11

12

13

Lincoln-Prairie View
School District #103

Units Closed/Bedrooms

Building Number

Units Under Contract/Bedrooms

Number of School-Aged Children

SD 102 & SD 103 Boundary Line

Note:  The Terraces “Spencer” unit is a standard 
2 Bedroom Model, with an option as a 3 
Bedroom Model.  Pulte is projecting 50% of the 
buyers will select the 3 Bedroom option.

Note:  Lot #s have been updated to reflect a loss of one unit - 85 Units.

School District

Legend

45 11.57 3.89 DU/AC
# units densityacres

Aptakisic-Tripp Community 
Consolidation School District #102

40 7.44 5.38 DU/AC
# units densityacres

1

3

3



4 5 23
A) Side A) Side A) Side B) Side A) Side B) Rear A) Rear

36.03' 36.03' 41.35' 35.66' 89.86' 61.33' 62.64'

25.09' 25.09' 40.93' 28.46' 83.63' 62.71' 62.88'

36.50' 36.50' 37.58' 31.48' 83.63' 62.71' 62.88'

24' 24' 24' 24' 60' 60'
Minimum PUD Standards as Approved by the Village 

of Lincolnshire
24'

Building Number 9 19
Dimension

Previously Approved Site Plan (86 Units)

Proposed Plan 4/12/17 (86 Units)

Proposed Plan 5/22/17 (85 Units)

tzozulya
Text Box
Building Spacing Comparison

tzozulya
Typewritten text
currentt



O

U

T

L

O

T

 
1

OUTLOT 7

1"=40'

DSGN.

DWN.

CHKD.

SCALE :

FILE NAME:

PROJECT NO.    140180

DATE : 05/15/2017

41SHEET                  OF

1"= 40'

CAMBERLEY CLUB

BUILDING 4 AND 5 SPACING

N

S

EW

EX140180-DIMENSION PLAN.DWG

SP1

WBK ENGINEERING, LLC
116 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
ST. CHARLES, ILLINOIS 60174
(630) 443-7755

tzozulya
Text Box
5/22/17 Proposed Building Spacing



1"=40'

DSGN.

DWN.

CHKD.

SCALE :

FILE NAME:

PROJECT NO.    140180

DATE : 5/15/2017

42SHEET                  OF

1"= 40'

CAMBERLEY CLUB

BUILDING 9 SPACING

N

S

EW

EX140180-DIMENSION PLAN.DWG

SP2

WBK ENGINEERING, LLC
116 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
ST. CHARLES, ILLINOIS 60174
(630) 443-7755



O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

OUTLOT 6

1"=40'

DSGN.

DWN.

CHKD.

SCALE :

FILE NAME:

PROJECT NO.    140180

DATE : 5/15/2017

43SHEET                  OF

1"= 40'

CAMBERLEY CLUB

BUILDING 19 SPACING

N

S

EW

EX140180-DIMENSION PLAN.DWG

SP3

WBK ENGINEERING, LLC
116 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
ST. CHARLES, ILLINOIS 60174
(630) 443-7755



O

U

T

L

O

T

 
1

O

U

T

L

O

T

 

1

OUTLOT 7

1"=40'

DSGN.

DWN.

CHKD.

SCALE :

FILE NAME:

PROJECT NO.    140180

DATE : 5/15/2017

44SHEET                  OF

1"= 40'

CAMBERLEY CLUB

BUILDING 23 SPACING

N

S

EW

EX140180-DIMENSION PLAN.DWG

SP4

WBK ENGINEERING, LLC
116 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
ST. CHARLES, ILLINOIS 60174
(630) 443-7755





skrebs
Polygon

skrebs
Polygon

skrebs
Polygon



skrebs
Rectangle

skrebs
Rectangle

skrebs
Typewritten Text
REMOVED

skrebs
Rectangle



FINDINGS OF FACT FOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
Camberley Club Amendment to Special Use to Swap Unit Types in 5 Buildings  

 
 
1. The proposed plan is consistent with the stated purpose of the planned unit 

development regulations. 

  
Yes, Pulte is proposing the PUD modification to address a significant change in 
market demand for the Villa type units as compared to the Terrace type units.  
Both plan types have previously been approved as part of the original PUD 
process.  The overall unit count remains as approved at 86 units. 

 
2. The proposed plan meets the requirements and standards of the planned unit 

development regulations. 

  
Yes, the proposed modification to the unit mix meets the standards of the Planned 
Unit Development regulations by improving the marketability of the overall PUD. 

 
3. The proposed plan departs from the zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise 

applicable to the subject property, including but not limited to, the density, 
dimensions, area, bulk, use, required improvement, construction and design 
standards and the reasons why such departures are deemed to be in the public 
interest. 

  
The proposed modifications do not change the density, zoning criteria or 
construction standards rather just modifies the unit mix to reflect updated 
consumer demand which is in the public interest. 

 
4. The public benefit produced by the planned unit development outweighs the 

increased burden(s) on public services and infrastructure. Any specific beneficial 
actions, plans or programs agreed to in the planned unit development proposal 
which are clearly beyond the minimum requirements of the Zoning Code shall be 
specifically listed as evidence of justified bulk premiums and/or use exception. 

  
The proposed modification to unit mix increases total bedroom count by 4 
bedrooms, 2 in District 102 and 2 in District 103.  The Districts will receive 
additional school impact fees totaling $6,026.48 to be split evenly between the 
Districts per the Village Impact Fee policy.  Additionally, the Library District will 
receive an additional $400 reflecting an additional $100 per additional bedroom. 

 
5. The physical design of the proposed plan makes adequate provisions for public 

services, provides adequate control over vehicular traffic, provides for and protects 
designated common open space, and further the amenities of light and air, recreation 
and visual enjoyment. 

  
The physical design is identical to the current approved plan.  Only minor changes 
to water and sewer service locations are required to avoid placing B-boxes and 
Clean-outs in proposed driveway locations.  Pulte will relocate said facilities on a 
building permit by building permit basis. 

 



6. The beneficial relationship and compatibility of the proposed plan to the adjacent 
properties and neighborhood. 

  
There is not change to the character or compatibility to the adjacent properties and 
neighborhood. 

 
7. The desirability of the proposed plan to the Village's physical development, tax base 

and economic well-being. 

  
There is a tangible improvement to the Village tax base as the Villa units are larger 
and carry a higher price than the Terrace units they will replace improving the well-
being of the Village. 

 
8. The conformity with the recommendations of the Official Comprehensive Plan, as 

amended, and all other official plans and planning policies of the Village. 

  
The proposed modification to the Camberley Club PUD is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, as amended, and all other official plans and planning 
policies of the Village of Lincolnshire. 

 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Peter Tremulis, Vice President, Land 
Pulte Home Company, a Michigan limited liability company 
1900 E. Golf Road, Suite 300 
Schaumburg, IL  60173 
 



 

 

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 

LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 17-____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A SPECIAL USE  

FOR A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR AN 

ATTACHED SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TOWNHOME COMMUNITY 

(ORDINANCE NO. 16-3391-118) 

 

WHEREAS, the Village, Lincolnshire Campus, LLC and the then title holder of record 

of certain real property (the “Subject Property”) entered into that certain Annexation Agreement 

dated August 25, 2003 and recorded as Exhibit A to Village Ordinance No. 03-1861-38 under 

document number 5434455 in the Office of the Lake County Recorder of Deeds (the “Original 

Annexation Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, Lincolnshire Campus, LLC subsequently acquired all interest in the Subject 

Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Village subsequently adopted Ordinance No. 03-1864-41, as amended 

by Ordinance No. 04-1899-15 and Ordinance No. 04-1905-21, which ordinances collectively 

granted for the Subject Property a special use for a planned unit development for a continuing 

care retirement campus and the final planned unit development plan therefor in the R-4 Single-

Family Attached Residential Zoning District (the “Sedgebrook PUD”); and 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the Village’s adoption of Ordinance No. 03-1864-41, 

Ordinance No. 04-1899-15 and Ordinance No. 04-1905-21, Lincolnshire Senior Care, LLC, a 

Delaware limited liability company (the “LSC”) acquired all interest in the Subject Property and 

remains the title holder of Lot 1; and 

WHEREAS, the Village and LSC entered into an amendment to the Original Annexation 

Agreement, which amendment is dated March 10, 2014 and recorded as Exhibit B to Village 

Ordinance No. 14-3321-47 under document number 7120708 in the Office of the Lake County 

Recorder of Deeds (the “First Amendment” and together with the Original Annexation 

Agreement, the “Amended Annexation Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the Village’s approval of the First Amendment, the 

Village adopted Ordinance No. 14-3322-48, which granted a further amendment to the 

Sedgebrook PUD (the “Fully Amended Sedgebrook PUD”); and 



 

 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with its entry into the First Amendment, LSC resubdivided 

the Subject Property into Lot 1 and Lot 2 of the Sedgebrook Resubdivision, as illustrated and 

depicted on the Final Plat of Sedgebrook Resubdivision (“Lot 1” and “Lot 2,” respectively); and 

WHEREAS, Pulte is the owner of Lot 2, as more specifically described in Exhibit A to 

this Ordinance, upon which it has been granted a special use for a planned unit development for 

an 86-unit townhome development pursuant to Ordinance 16-3391-118 (the “Camberley Club 

PUD Ordinance”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Title 6 of the Village Code, Pulte submitted to 

the Village an application for Village Board consideration seeking a major amendment to the 

Camberley Club PUD Ordinance to revise more than 10% of the unit mix approved by the 

Village (the “PUD Application”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities conducted a public hearing on April 12, 2017, 

regarding the PUD Application; and 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid hearing on the PUD Application was held pursuant to notice 

thereof delivered via certified mail return receipt requested and published on March 25, 2017, in 

the Daily Herald, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village, as provided by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities conclude the proposed development of Lot 2 in 

accordance with the PUD Application will be beneficial to the Village, will not be detrimental to 

the Village’s Comprehensive Plan or the spirit and intent of the Lincolnshire Zoning Code (the 

“Zoning Code”) or the Lincolnshire Subdivision Code (the “Subdivision Code”) and will 

otherwise enhance and promote the general welfare of the Village and the health, safety and 

welfare of the residents of the Village. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Lincolnshire, in exercise of its home rule authority, as follows: 

Section 1.  Recitals.   

A. The Corporate Authorities hereby confirm the truth and validity of the 

representations and recitations set forth in the foregoing recitals and do further acknowledge that 

they are material to this Ordinance.  Such recitals are hereby incorporated into and made a part of 

this Ordinance as though they were fully set forth herein.  The Corporate Authorities further 

intend that this Ordinance shall be liberally construed so that the purpose and intent represented 

by the recitals shall be accomplished to the greatest extent permitted by law. 



 

 

B. The findings of fact of the Applicant, attached hereto as Exhibit B, are herein 

incorporated by reference as the findings of this Board to the same effect as if fully recited herein 

at length.  All references in the findings are made the references of the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Lincolnshire. 

Section 2.  Amendment to the Camberley Club PUD Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 16-

3391-118 is hereby amended as follows: 

A. The unit mix approved for Lot 2, as more fully depicted on the sheet titled “Lot 

Development Plan” and dated September 8, 2015, of the Camberley Club PUD Ordinance, is 

hereby replaced with a new unit mix, as more fully depicted on Exhibit C of this ordinance, 

attached hereto and incorporated as though full set forth herein.  The result of this amendment is 

to permit 63 Villas units and 22 Terraces units (a total of 85 units after one unit elimination). 

B. All of the remaining conditions, limitations and provisions of Ordinance No. 16-

3391-118 shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3.  Consents.  By signing the acknowledgement and accepting the terms and 

conditions of this Ordinance, Pulte knowingly and voluntarily waives, for itself and its 

successors and assigns, any and all claims against the Village, its elected and appointed officers, 

employees and agents, of whatever kind, nature and amount, resulting from the limitations on the 

development of Lot 2 applied by this Ordinance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this 

Ordinance shall be deemed to waive the ability for Pulte, or its successors and assigns, to petition 

the Village, from time to time, for other and further zoning and subdivision approvals.   

Section 4.  Superseding Effect.  The specific terms and conditions of this Ordinance 

shall prevail against other existing ordinances of the Village to the extent of any conflicts.  

Except for the foregoing limitation and subject to the terms of the Second Amendment, the 

development of Lot 2 remains subject to all terms and conditions of Applicable Codes and 

Ordinances of the Village of Lincolnshire including, without limitation, zoning ordinances, 

building codes, subdivision regulations and regulations concerning the construction and design 

of public improvements. 

Section 5.  Penalties.  Any person violating the terms and conditions of this Ordinance 

shall be subject to a penalty not exceeding Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) with each and every 

day that the violation of the Ordinance is allowed to remain in effect being deemed a complete 

and separate offense.  In addition, the appropriate authorities of the Village may take such other 



 

 

action as they deem proper to enforce the terms and conditions of this Ordinance, including, 

without limitation, an action in equity to compel compliance with its terms.  Any person 

violating the terms of this Ordinance shall be subject, in addition to the foregoing penalties, to 

the payment of court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees.  This section shall not apply to the 

Village of Lincolnshire, its officials, agents or employees. 

Section 6.  Enforcement.  Lot 2 shall be made available for inspection by any 

department of the Village at all reasonable times for compliance with this Ordinance and any 

other applicable laws or regulations. 

Section 7.  Effective Date; Assent.    This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

from and after its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law, 

provided, however, that this Ordinance shall not take effect until a true and correct copy of this 

Ordinance is executed by Pulte, or such other parties in interest as the Village may reasonably 

identify, consenting to and agreeing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Ordinance.  

Delivery to the Village of a copy of this Ordinance, as so executed, shall take place not later than 

sixty (60) days after the passage and approval of this Ordinance by the Corporate Authorities or 

within such extension of time as may be granted by the Corporate Authorities by motion. 



 

 

PASSED this ____th day of ___________, 2017, by the Corporate Authorities of the 

Village of Lincolnshire on a roll call vote as follows: 

 

 AYES:     
 

 NAYS:      
 

 ABSTAIN:     
 

 ABSENT:    
 

 APPROVED this ____th day of ___________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Elizabeth J. Brandt, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________ 

Barbara Mastandrea, Village Clerk 

 

Published by me in pamphlet form 

this ____ day of ____________, 2017.  
 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGED and ACCEPTED 

this ___ day of ___________, 2017. 

 

PULTE HOME CORPORATION  

 

 

By:        

 Curt Van Hyfte, Division President 

 

Date:        



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LOT 2 

 
 
 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 



 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

REVISED UNIT MIX MAP AND TABLE 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 12, 2017

to install an Identification Sign and variations to permit an electronic 
display screen including plans and benefits of the new sign.

Mr. Art Solis with North Shore Sign provided a presentation highlighting 
specifics related to the design of the proposed sign. 

Trustee Grujanac asked if the lights in the sign could be dimmed. Mr. 
Solis stated the lights could be dimmed. Mr. Hite noted a resident was 
at the ARB meeting with light concerns, and they were able to address 
the resident concerns. 

Mr. Hite provided an additional presentation addressing the ARB 
conditions. 

Village Attorney Simon asked when the lights would be turned off. Mr. 
Hite stated the display screen would be turned off no later than 30 
minutes after the conclusion of each evening’s performance with the 
latest possible performance being 10:45 or 10:00 p.m. on a night there 
is no performance. 

Mr. Hite continued with his presentation with content examples and 
project survey results relative to the visibility of the proposed sign to the 
adjacent Rivershire residential development.

There was a consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 
Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting.

3.12 PUBLIC HEARING on a Proposed Amendment to the Existing 
Special Use for a Planned Unit Development for an Attached Single 
Family Residential Townhome Community to Revise Previously 
Approved Final Development Plans and Plat for a Revised Unit Mix 
(Pulte Homes)

Economic Development Coordinator provided a summary of a request 
for a proposed amendment to the existing Special Use for a Planned 
Unit Development for Camberley Club to revise previously approved
final development plans and plat for a revised unit mix. The Board 
asked for clarification regarding building separation requirements, 
reductions as a result of the proposed plat revisions, unit sales relative 
to the school districts and how it compares to the original proposal. 

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya noted Pulte complied with 
the Public Notification requirements and provided responses to the PUD 
standards.  

Mayor Brandt recessed the Committee of the Whole meeting and
opened the Public Hearing regarding a Proposed Amendment to the 
Existing Special Use for a Planned Unit Development for an Attached 
Single Family Residential Townhome Community to Revise Previously 
Approved Final Development Plans and Plat for a Revised Unit Mix 

Return to Agenda

tzozulya
Line



Page 3
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 12, 2017

(Pulte Homes).

Mayor Brandt noted the procedures of the Public Hearing

Mayor Brandt swore in Mr. Peter Tremulis Vice President of Land with 
Pulte Homes.

Mr. Tremulis provided a summary and presentation of Pulte’s request to 
change building types for 5 buildings from Terrace buildings to Villa
buildings. Mr. Tremulis noted the setback changes that would result 
from the proposed change. Mr. Tremulis provided information regarding 
the school districts relative to the units as requested by the board.

Trustee Feldman asked how typical this type of unit change request 
comes up after plans have already been approved. Mr. Tremulis stated 
this is not a common request; the current request is the result of the 
consumer demand for the larger, more expense homes.

Trustee Hancock asked how many more bedrooms would there be as a 
result of the building change. Mr. Tremulis noted the larger units offer a 
larger bedroom mix of 3 – 4 bedrooms while the smaller units offer 2 – 3
bedrooms. Mr. Tremulis stated Pulte will need to true-up at the end of 
the project for school and park impact fees. The increase could be up to 
six more bedrooms than originally planned. 

A conversation regarding the possible impact the revised units could 
have on the schools followed. Mr. Tremulis noted the Villa buildings
already sold have no school age children in them. 

Mayor Brandt asked what the price differential was from the Terrace 
buildings to the Villa buildings. Mr. Tremulis noted the price differential 
is approximately $200,000. Trustee Hancock asked what the price point 
of each building type was. Mr. Tremulis stated the Terrace buildings are 
in the $500,000 range and the Villa buildings are in the $700,000 range. 

Trustee McDonough asked if Pulte considered removing some of the 
Terrace buildings from the plan to accommodate the Villa buildings they 
are proposing. Mr. Tremulis stated Pulte has not considered taking 
buildings out at this time. Trustee McDonough noted a lot of time was 
taken on the layout of the original plan to make sure the plan was not
too dense, and the buildings had a good amount of separation. Trustee 
McDonough stated his opinion was if Pulte wants to change Terrace 
into Villa’s some of the Terrace buildings should be removed.

Trustee Hancock asked what the ratio of Terrace buildings versus Villa 
buildings are in the proposed plan and what was the ratio originally. Mr. 
Tremulis noted the proposed plan would be 6 Terrace buildings or 22 
units remaining in the 86 unit subdivision. Village Attorney Simon noted 
the original plan was 45 Villa units and 41 Terrace units. Village 
Manager Burke noted there would be a 21% change in building/unit 

Return to Agenda



Page 4
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 12, 2017

types. A conversation regarding the demand versus buildout followed. 
Trustee Hancock noted his opinion is the proposed is too much of a
change that would affect density and the schools.

Trustee Grujanac noted her concern is the impact on the schools with 
the possibility of the additional bedrooms. Trustee Leider asked if they 
considered converting less than the five buildings currently proposed. 
Mr. Tremulis noted building 9 could possibly be eliminated from the 
request for change in unit type.

Mayor Brandt asked if Pulte talked with the schools about the proposed 
change. Mr. Tremulis stated Pulte has not talked to the schools but 
would be happy to do so. Mayor Brandt asked Pulte to revisit the 
request and possibly revise the request to convert fewer buildings. 
Mayor Brandt asked Pulte if they would consider talking with the 
schools, possibly revise their request to convert fewer buildings to
Villas, and consider limiting the number of bedrooms for the proposed 
Villa building to 3 bedrooms and a loft. Mr. Tremulis stated he is not 
prepared to make this decision and would have to report back to the 
Board. 

Mayor Brandt noted her opinion was the smaller units are promoting 
more school age children not the proposed larger units.

Village Attorney Simon asked for clarification noting some of the 
paperwork for building 9 states it is building 8. Mr. Tremulis noted there 
was an error in some of the paperwork noting building 8 which is 
actually building 9 and this has been corrected. 

Trustee McDonough noted concern with the space between buildings, 
specifically buildings 4 and 5. 

A conversation regarding reducing the amount of buildings and 
financials followed. Mr. Tremulis stated he did not feel comfortable 
taking out an entire building and would be more comfortable building out 
what was originally approved.

Trustee Leider stated his opinion is the proposed would not likely be 
approved unless Pulte could come back with something the Board 
would feel more comfortable accepting.

Mr. Tremulis stated Pulte would work with staff and bring a revised 
proposal back to the Board which would convert less of the Terrace 
buildings to Villa buildings.

Mayor Brandt asked if there were any Public comments.

Mayor Brandt adjourned the Public Hearing and reconvened the 
Committee of the Whole meeting at 8:16 p.m.

Return to Agenda



 

Agenda Item 

   3.12 COW 

 

v:\subdivisions\brookwoodfarm\covenants\5_22_17_cow\2017_05_22_100brookwoodlanecovenants.docx 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole 

May 22, 2017 
 

Subject:  Request to Amend Existing Land Use Covenants - 100 Brookwood 
Lane  

Action Requested: Discussion & Feedback 

Petitioner:  Elango Sampandam & Ramadevi Loganathan, 100 Brookwood Lane 
Property Owners 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator  

Referred To:  Village Board 

 
Background: 

 Mr. Elango Sampandam & Ms. Ramadevi Loganathan, current owners of 100 
Brookwood Lane, seek Village Board feedback regarding a request to remove restrictive 
land use covenants from their lot. The property is located in the Brookwood Farm 
Subdivision on the west side of Riverwoods Road (see map inset and attached location 
map).    

                                                                         

 The Village Board approved 
annexation and development plans 
for the 9-lot Brookwood Farm 
Subdivision in 2006. The 19.6-acre 
property originally contained a horse 
farm which was sold to developer 
C.E. Russell & Associates in 2006. 
The entire subdivision is currently 
zoned R1 Single-Family Residential. 
In 2009, the bank took possession of the property as the developer was unable to 
complete construction. 
 

 In 2006, with the approval of the subdivision, the Village Board approved an Ordinance 
#06-2022-13 granting a variation for 100 Brookwood Lane (Lot 1) size which is 
approximately 8,000 square feet less than a minimum required lot size of 80,000 square 
feet in the R-1 zoning district. The Village Board also approved Ordinance #06-2024-15A 
to allow a detached garage on Lot 1. At the time of the subdivision approval, the 
developer requested the ability to maintain the existing structures on Lot 1 to preserve 
the rural nature of the historical use of the property and enhance the distinctive 
characteristics of the proposed subdivision, thereby creating a unique development not 
commonly found in the Village. As a result, the Village Board adopted Ordinance #06-
2023-14 allowing two principal buildings on Lot 1 and land use covenants for Lot 1 which 
remain in effect today and do not have an expiration date (see attached). 
 

 The property located at 100 Brookwood Lane is a 1.7 acre parcel included as part of the 
original subdivision. This parcel is located in the southeast corner of the subdivision. At 
this time, 3 lots are improved with new residential homes. The 100 Brookwood property 
consists of a ranch-style house and a detached coach house/garage, believed to be built 
in the mid- to late 1940’s as part of the original homestead (other accessory structures 
were removed after subdivision approval). The property also contains a detention pond 
and approximately 20 healthy “heritage” oak trees (see attached photographs). Access 
to the lot is provided off Brookwood Lane which is consistent with the other lots (the 



 

Agenda Item 

   3.12 COW 

 

v:\subdivisions\brookwoodfarm\covenants\5_22_17_cow\2017_05_22_100brookwoodlanecovenants.docx 

original access off Riverwoods Road was closed off when the subdivision was platted).  
 

 The current owners of 100 Brookwood Lane owners purchased the property in 2011 and 
connected it to Village utilities at that time. The existing structures have not been 
modified since the subdivision approval. In 2016, they listed the property for sale and no 
longer reside in the Village.  
  

 The Village Board discussed this property at the April 12, 2017 Committee of the Whole 
meeting in light of homeowner inquiries related to the possible sale of 100 Brookwood 
Lane.  At that time, the Village Board requested information be provided to Brookwood 
Lane property owners to inform them that the 100 Brookwood Lane property is covered 
by covenants specifying requirements for the existing and replacement structures. Staff 
sent letters and copies of the covenants to all Brookwood Farm property owners as well 
as the steps required to lift or amend the covenants. 

 
Summary of Request:      

 The petitioners request the covenants be removed altogether so their lot can be treated 
the same way as the other lots in the subdivision according to the R1 zoning and land 
development standards, including the newly revised Tree Preservation Code. 
   

 As indicated in the attached cover letter and packet, the owners have been unable to sell 
or rent the property since 2016. Prospective buyers have been largely interested in the 
property for a teardown due to the amount of repairs required to maintain the structures 
but have been reluctant to go forward with the purchase due to the covenants. A recent 
prospective buyer allegedly cancelled the sale as they desired to build a two-story house 
not meeting the covenants. The petitioner indicates other prospective buyers did not 
make offers due to the condition of the structures (see attached showing feedback). The 
petitioner notes home maintenance is burdensome given the age of the structures, and 
the home risks falling into further disrepair given the house is vacant.    

 
Summary of 100 Brookwood Lane Covenants:  

 The existing structures can be repaired and maintained in their original conditions or 
replaced with the following stipulations: 
 

o A replacement house must be up to 5,190 square feet in area, 25’8” tall/1 story 
(rather than 40’ tall/2.5 stories allowed for other R1 lots) and designed in a 
traditional country farm ranch-style design of a wood or wood-like exterior with 
either asphalt or cedar shake roof to replicate the existing house. Construction of 
a replacement house requires removal of the coach house/garage. The 
impervious surface ratio must be up to 13.7% (rather than 30% allowed for other 
R1 lots). 
 

o The existing coach house/garage can be removed and an attached garage 
added to the existing farm house.  
 

o Existing mature trees in the southeast corner of the lot can only be removed if the 
Village determines they are diseased or dying.  

 

 Below is a comparison of the 100 Brookwood Lane land use requirements with other 
Brookwood Lane R1 lots:   
 



 

Agenda Item 

   3.12 COW 

 

v:\subdivisions\brookwoodfarm\covenants\5_22_17_cow\2017_05_22_100brookwoodlanecovenants.docx 

 

Item 
100 Brookwood Lane Covenants 

Restrictions 
Other Brookwood Lane Lot Requirements 

(per standard R1 Zoning) 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 7% 25% 

Impervious Surface 13.70% 30% 

Building Height 25'8"/1 story 40'/2.5 stories 

House Design 

Mature Tree Removal 

No mature tree removal in the 
southeast portion of the property 
unless diseased/dying 

No "heritage tree*" removals permitted 
unless trees are dead/dying/diseased or for 
good forestry practice. Removal of 4 or more 
Heritage trees requires Village Board 
approval.   

   * Village Code defines “heritage trees“ as oak, hickory & walnut   
    trees of  certain  species  with a diameter of 20" or greater 

  

 The Village Attorney determined, upon review of the covenants language, the covenants 
can be removed or amended with written consent from at least 35% of Brookwood Lane 
property owners, excluding 100 Brookwood Lane, and approval from a majority of the 
Village Board. The 35% threshold can be measured by either the number of Brookwood 
Farm lots (3 lot owners is 35%) or total acreage owned (6 acres is 35%).  
 

 Similar covenants exist in the Whytegate Subdivision to the south on the west side of 
Riverwoods Road, regulating the former Florsheim estate house and several adjacent 
lots. These covenants are set to expire in 2025. Other subdivisions have private 
covenants (where the Village is not a party) to regulate roofing materials. However, staff 
is not aware of any other lot-specific covenants except Whytegate.    
 

Recommendation:  
Staff requests the Board’s review and feedback to the petitioner and staff. Should the Board be 
open to lifting the covenants, the petitioner will contact adjacent Brookwood Farm owners to 
obtain the consent of at least three property owners and will return to the Village Board at a 
future date for formal review and approval.   
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

 Location map, prepared by MGP GIS Consortium.  

 Letter of request, submitted by Elango Sampandam & Ramadevi Loganathan, 100 
Brookwood Lane property owners. 

 100 Brookwood Lane (Lot 1) Covenants.  

 100 Brookwood Lane photographs, prepared by staff.  
 

Meeting History 

Current COW discussion May 22, 2017 

 

Ranch, white wooden exterior; 
asphalt/cedar shake roof, and 
brick paver/asphalt/concrete or 
aggregate driveway or sidewalk None to the best of staff knowledge 



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!

205

203
200

12
07

204

202

100

102

104106

10
8

107
105

103 101

24
54

3
24

32
5

RIVERW
OODS RD

NORTHAMPTON LN

BROOKWOOD LN R1

100
Brookwood Ln

Legend
Zoning Districts

!

! ! !! Subject Location
Parcel Boundary
Village Boundary

Community & Economic Development

100 Brookwood Ln
1.56 acres

± LocationMap_Landscape_20170512
JVD, 5/12/2017

1 inch = 134 feet



From 
Elango Sampandam & Ramadevi Loganathan, 
100 Brookwood Ln, 
Lincolnshire, IL-60069 
 
To 
Respected Mayor Elizabeth Brandt and Village Trustees, 
Village of Lincolnshire, IL 
 
 
My wife and I are the owners of 100 Brookwood Lane property. I'd  like to bring to your 
attention the restricted covenant on my property and seek your approval in removing the 
covenant. 
 
I purchased my home in 2010 from bank and have lived there since then. My family and I have 
been longtime and upstanding members of this community. We care about this area and have 
benefited greatly from our time here. My daughter went to school at Stevenson and I watched 
proudly as she spent over 300 hours volunteering and serving our community. 
 
Due to a job relocation, I had to move out of state in 2016 and put my home up for sale. Our 
home is about 70 years old. An old house requires a lot of maintenance, which puts a 
tremendous strain on my income. Moreover, because the property is older, people are 
unwilling to rent. People who come to the showings say that the property only interests them 
as a tear-down*. There are not many buyers who have the resources and interest to invest in a 
tear-down, and the few that are, have been scared off by the restrictive covenant. Recently, a 
prospective buyer (the only one) cancelled a signed contract due to this very issue. 
 
My house has been on the market since November, 2016. I have been living out of state and 
maintaining two households and utilities since then. I have endured a huge financial and 
psychological burden in making a good faith effort to sell my property under the restricted 
covenant.  
 
We have always followed the rules of this community. For example, shortly after buying our 
home, we took on another big financial commitment to get a water and sewer connection from 
the village in order to follow their instructions. We took a house that hadn't been lived in for 
years and was an eyesore to the community and turned it into a home that contributed 
something back. Clearing the restricted covenant would be be to the benefit of all--as it stands, 
I am not able to rent or sell my house. Rather than allowing it to remain an old and 
uninhabited property in a neighborhood of new and upscale constructions, giving someone 
the opportunity to build a new home will move the neighborhood forward. 
 
We are not asking for an exception. The restriction was placed 10 years ago and, for some 
reason, it does not apply to any other property on our street (Brookwood ln) but 
mine. Needless to say, circumstances have changed a lot in the last decade, and I expect the 



same rights as of any other home owners on Brookwood ln-- to use this parcel to build a new 
home without any special restrictions on my property alone.    
 
For the reasons above, I am reaching out to clear the restricted covenant to facilitate the sale of 
the property so that I can be relieved financially and so that this neighborhood can move 
forward.  
 
I look forward to hearing from the village at the earliest for resolution to proceed with the sale 
of my property. 
 
Due to family illness, I have to travel to India, so please consider this as my in person request. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Elango Sampandam 
 
*Please find enclosed the feedback report from recent showings  of my property. 
 

 



s1r2e
Rectangle

s1r2e
Rectangle

s1r2e
Rectangle

s1r2e
Rectangle

s1r2e
Rectangle

s1r2e
Rectangle



p?repmed B1i ai'id
,4f'ler recordiiig, return lo:

Adam B. Simon, Esq.
.Aiiicel, Gliiik, Diamond, Btish,

DiCiaiini & Rolek, P.C.
4) s W. lVasliiiigton Street, Suite 202
Waiikegan, lHinois 60085

11111111111111111111111111111!!!l!!!!111!Qlj51gl%llll5Qgllllllllllll
j0008 Type: DECIffiage# 040555790008 Type: ucbae.corded: 11/13/2006 at 08:56:10 Al'lFiaeco;aea: 11/13/200e at

Qsicslot#: 2006-00016063mecel0t#: 2006-00015U5.5Total Amt: $43.00 Page 1 of 8
IL Rental Housing Fund: $10.00
- a ------ Tl oarnrrh.r!?ak 'a" 'E' o: aui '!' !'v?sro! o'vylj'j:eracsr'oeh rndt a@ rrLake [;ounT7 &k rseyv- ---Mary Ellen Vanderventer Recorder

" & a J% 44/%(;589436File

ABOVE SPACE FOR RECORDER'S LISE ONL'i'

065571.020'l000l 10/19/06

DECLARATION OF

LAND USE COVENANT

RE: BROOKWOOD FARM/LOT l

Tl?iis Declaration is made by C.E. Russel] and Associates, Ltd., an Illinois corporation

(?Developer"). Developer is the legal title holder of all lots in the subdivision commonly known

as thc Estates of Brookwood Farm Subdivision, created by the plat of subdivision recorded in

J-ake Corinty, Jllinois on !'JOV(lWl'Od '1, 2006 as Document No. (pO 'E 'K 'f>4 ("Propeity");

WHEREAS, Developer has applied for a variance in relation to the development of Lot ]

of' the Property ("Lot 1 ") to permit more than one principal structure on Lot l for the purpose of

pi'eserving the existiiig "multi-building compound? on Lot l ;

Wl-IEREAS, Developer has testified and offered evidence in support of the variance

appl ication tending to demonstrate that the existing multi-buildiiig compo?ind preserves the rural

iiat?ire of t1?ie liistorica? use of the Property and enhances the distinctive characteristics of the

13rookwood Farm Subdivision, thereby creating a unique development not commonly found iii

the Village',

WHEREAS, tl?ie Board of Trustees of tl'ie Village of Lincolnshire found that the

preservation of the fundamental elements of the existing multi-buildiiig compound will protect J

u

{' Q.
',(16557: (120: l)(lll0871.DOC '.8 )



property values on the Propetty and protect an essential characteristic of the Subdivision, thereby

promoting tl'ie health, safety and welfare of the community as a whole;

WHEREAS, the Village Board determined to grant the variance sut?ject to the condition

that the defining character of the multi-building compound on Lot l of the Subdivision, as more

specifically described herein, be preserved as provided herein.

NOW, THEREF(RE, in consideration for the foregoing recitals and the Village's grant

of the variance herein described, Developer, as owner of Lot 1, hereby declares as follows:

l . The covenants made hereiii are for the use and benefit of the Village of

Liiicolnsliire, actiiig by arid through its Board of Trustees (the "Village"), and all Owners, from

time to time, of Lots on the Property (collectively, the "Beiieficiaries").

J T)ie covenants herein are applicable to Lot ] ("Lot ] "), as more fully described in

I'Exliibit "A", attacl?ied liereto and incorporated as though fully set f-orth herein.

3. Lot 1 shall hereafter only be used, possessed and ii'nproved in compliance with tl'ie

following resti-rations:

A. The bui]dings on Lot 1 which are depicted on the site plan attached hereto

as Exliibit B ("Preserved Buildings") shall remain; provided, that the Barn/Garage

shall be relocated to the location shown on Exhibit B. All other existing buildings

shall be razed and removed from Lot l . The Preserved Buildiyigs consist of arid

include a one story "Farm Ho?ise", a "Coach House? and a "Barn/Garage", all as

depicted on Exhibit B.

B. Tl'ie Owner of Lot 1 shall have the right and pouier at any time or from

time to time to repair and maintain the Preserved Buildings so long as the

materials used to repair and maintain the Preserved Buildiiigs satisfy the standards

'l)(i557. l)20'. 001 l0871.DOC :8 } 2



desci-ibed in Sections 3(C)(3)(a) - (e).

C. The Owner of Lot 1 shall have the right and power at any time or from

time to time to raze and remove any one or more of the Preserved Buildings and

may construct new or replacement buildiiigs sul?ject to the following restrictions:

l . If after the Barn/Garage is moved to the location shown on

Exhibit B, it is razed and removed, a rep)acement garage may be built,

and, if so, it shall be attached to the Farm House; provided the Farm

House still must comply with the restrictions described in Sections

3(CX3Xa) - (e)

2. If the Coach House is razed and removed, it shall not be

rebuilt, but the Farm House may be enlarged wit?'i an attached ranch-style

addition which is not greater than the square footage of the Coach House

which was razed and matches the Fai-m Horise's then current buildiiig

materials; provided the Farm House, as enlarged, still rmist comply with

the restrictions described in Sections 3(C)(3)(a) - (e).

3. If the Fann House is razed and removed, then the Coacli

House and Bam/Garage shall also be razed and removed and one

replacement home witb an attached two or three car garage may be

constnicted on Lot 1 ("Replacement Home"). Tlie Replacen'ient Home

shall be a ranch style home with what is commonly referred to as a

"traditional country farm house look?, which as nearly as practicable

replicates the appearance of the Preserved ?uildings. Without Iimiting the

foregoing, the followiiig standards shall apply:

?eiix5s?i' l)20' OOll0871.DOC :8 ', 3



(a) The Replacement Home shall have a floor area ratio

of 7. 171, shall be no higher at its highest roof point than 25 feet 8

inches above established grade, and shall have no more than

7. 171%lot coverage.

(b) The exterior walls shall be wood or a material

bearing a wood-like faqade which as nearly as practicable

replicates the appearance arid color of the Preserved Briildings.

(c) The roof shall either be asphalt shingles ideiitica? in

style and color to the roof existing at the time of this agreement or

cedar shake.

(d) Tl'ie driveway arid sidewalks shall be brick pavers,

asphalt, aggregate or concrete.

(e) The impervious surface on Lot 1 shall riot exceed

13.666o/o of the total area of Lot 1 .

D. Occupancy. Notwithstanding the number of principal structures existing

on Lot l at any time, the number of occupants shall be limited by reference to the

applicable property maintenance code regulations for one principa? residential

structure with 5,190 square feet. Lot I shall always be occupied by the Owner as

a principal residence.

E. Established Gradc. In the event any of the Preserved Briildings are

hereafter removed, razed or destroyed, the established grade of the Farm Housc

shall remain the established grade for any new improvements constructed thereon.

',l)li557' 021)'. l)01 l()871.DOC '.8j 4



F. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, each tree iii the existing

stand of trees in the southeast corner of the lot, as depicted on Exliibit B, shall not

be removed unless it is determined to be diseased or dyiiig, as authorized by the

Village Forester.

4. Amendments. The Owner of Lot l may amend the covenants and restrictions

ccintaiiied hereiii with the written consent of Owners of at least 35% of the Lots or the Property

owned b+,r Owners other than the owner of Lot l and the vvritten consent of the Board of Tr?istees

(ll- the Village, which consent may be exercised in the Board's sole discretion and shall be

evidenced by the adoption of a resolution. Any amendment shall only be effective if it contains

s?i:['ficient specificity to permit reasonable enforcement thereof. The writing bearing the

sigiiahires of the coiiseiiting owners must contain a detailed description of the ai'nendment being

soyigl'it or a copy of the amendment. Any amendment so obtained shall not be effective until

evidence of compliance with t]ie requirements set forth hereiii shall be recorded against Lo( l . In

llie cvent ;iiisr lot on the Property is owned in joint tenancy or tenancy by tl'ie entirety, all of the

owners of that lot shall be considered to be one owner for the purpose of t]iis provision and

calculatiiig tl'ie percentage of consenting owners.

s. In the event of any suit or claim allegiiig the failure to comply with these

coiicnai?its arid restrictions, the prevailing party to srich suit shall be awarded all of its fees and

ccists, including expert and attorneys' fees.

OWNER

C.E. Russeli and Aspciates, Ltd.'t"ffll'dA/)/'>a'='a??
BY:
Date: /0- Q7- p(,,

'i lRi > s 7 '. (l'2 0 '. 001 l 08'l l ? l) (-.) (.'. '. R ! s



STATE OF ILLINOIS)
) SS.

COUNTY OF COOK )

I, the rindersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, do l'iereby
certify that Charles Russell, personally known to me to be the same person whose name is
sribscribed to the foregoing instrument as Owner, appeared before me this day in person and
acknowledged that he signed and delivered the same instrument as his free and voluntary act for
the rises arid purposes therein set forth.

A!7 aayord)l?Giveii riiider my hand and notarial seal this r;?, 7 - day of Ur!il'4ec , 2006.

(Seal)

gll1lllWVlvvlllll1l!lvvl1l1ll!1ll11lq}

p &,,ffi
/

Notary Public (7 '

!

',l)li557'. l)20'. 00111)871.DOC :8 } 6



EXHIBIT 'A'

Lot l in Brookwood Farm Subdivision, being a Subdivision of part of the Northeast (uaiter of
the Southeast Quarter of Section 11, Township 43 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal
Meridian, according to the Plat thereofrecorded in Lake County, Illinois on Moveh b<x 4, 2?
2006asDocument'No. (oDfbq?)S'l /

%06557: 020: 001l0871.DOC :8 ) 7



EXHIBIT "U"

,?*a00" -,l"
r

'%
[X.

GARAGE
TO BE

RaOCATED

1 lqaoca?
l GARAGE l

S

PROPOSED

LOT 1

s-'7p;
TO EIE RaOCATED

r

Z-?
Dl HOt+SE

L??l's

]

I
)

)

0
<
o
E€

m
0
o
o
a
[3
UJ
>
?

[€

NORTHAMPTON LANE



tzozulya
Typewritten text
House 

tzozulya
Typewritten text
House

tzozulya
Typewritten text
Coach House & Garage

tzozulya
Typewritten text
Coach House & Garage



AGENDA ITEM 
3.21 COW  

V:\Shared_Files\Cover_Sheet\2017\2017_05_22_Energy_Contract_Non_Franchise_Accts.doc 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

May 22, 2017 

Subject: 
Authorizing the Village Manager to Execute Documentation to Secure 
a Final Electricity Price for Various Electricity Accounts 
(Village of Lincolnshire)  

Action Requested: Consideration and Discussion of Authorizing Village Manager to 
Execute Documentation to Secure Final Electricity Pricing for Various 
Electricity Accounts 

Originated By/Contact: Village Manager 

Referred To: Village Board 

Summary / Background: 
Currently, the Village has a contract with Constellation Energy to provide electricity for various non-
franchise electricity accounts.  For the franchise accounts (generally Village Hall and Public Works 
buildings), the Village receives electricity from Com Ed at no charge.  The current Constellation Energy 
contract is set to expire at the end of this year.  Since 2006, the Village has worked with Satori Energy 
(formerly Energy Choices), a Metropolitan Mayor’s Caucus vendor, to secure pricing for non-franchise 
electricity accounts.  Satori Energy is prepared to solicit pricing for various Village of Lincolnshire non-
franchise accounts prior to the termination of the current agreement with Constellation Energy.   

To help the Village avoid being impacted by fluctuations in the electricity market, Satori Energy 
recommends the Village obtain pricing from electricity supply companies to secure pricing prior to the 
termination of the current contract at the end of this year. The current ComEd fixed rate is $0.071/kWh, 
and the current contract with Constellation Energy provides for a rate of $0.05635/kWh. Satori Energy 
recently solicited pricing on behalf of the Village of Lincolnshire and received indicative pricing as low as 
$0.05136 for 2 to 3 year contract terms.  These rates could result in annual savings of $4,000 to $5,000 
annually compared to the current contract rate on the Village’s non-franchise electricity supply accounts. 
To provide flexibility in securing the best possible pricing for the Village, staff requests the Village Board 
authorize the Village Manager execute documentation to secure pricing for a final electricity rate for 
various non-franchise accounts.  The Village Manager will work with representatives from Satori Energy 
to obtain the best pricing for the Village and lock in rates with a supplier.  Once the supplier is identified 
staff will bring the final contract to the Village Board for formal ratification and approval. 

Budget Impact: Unknown at this time.  Once pricing is received, staff will communicate anticipated 
budget impact.   

Service Delivery Impact:  None. 

Recommendation: Consideration granting authorization to the Village Manager to secure final electricity 
price for various electricity accounts.  Staff will be available at Monday’s meeting to answer any questions 
of the Village Board. 

Reports and Documents Attached: 
• Satori Energy Memorandum regarding Village of Lincolnshire Non-Franchise Accounts
• May 11, 2017 Satori Energy Quote for Electricity Supply for Village Non-Franchise Accounts

Meeting History 
Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): 05/22/2017 
Regular Village Board Meeting: 



 

 

 

MEMO: VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

All Village pumping accounts are currently under contract with Constellation Energy.  All accounts are up 
for renewal in December 2017.   Some of your accounts are eligible for the ComEd fixed rate and others 
are NOT eligible for this rate.  Either way, the ComEd fixed rate is $0.071/kWh right now and the market 
rate we are considering shows considerable savings over the ComEd rate.   

A price comparison is attached of all accounts.  We are looking to execute a 2 or 3 year contract and are 
requesting permission to sign a new pumping contract at $0.055/kWh or below.  These are all-in energy 
prices.  A bid completed on 5/11 is attached.  At these rates, the savings will be between $4,000-5,000 
per year of the contract.  This could change depending on market conditions at the time of the contract. 

Metropolitan Energy Collaborative 
In January 2007, ComEd eliminated subsidized fixed-rate electricity service for non-franchise municipal 
accounts.  To bring a cost-effective electricity supply alternative to municipalities in northern Illinois, the 
Metropolitan Mayors Caucus and Energy Choices (now Satori Energy) joined forces to create the 
Metropolitan Energy Collaborative.  The “Collaborative” sought supply from a multitude of pre-qualified 
suppliers to secure lower-priced electricity to municipalities.   In the first year the “Collaborative” saved 
municipalities an average of 27% on their electricity supply charges over ComEd’s unsubsidized bundled 
fixed rate.  The Metropolitan Energy Collaborative continues providing cost-effect electricity supply to 
municipalities for pumping and street lighting accounts, as well as residential accounts: 

 

Arlington Heights 

Bedford Park 

Oak Forest 

Roselle 

Hoffman Estates 

Waukegan 

Prospect Heights 

Alsip 

Bartlett 



LaGrange Park 

Lincolnshire 

Morton Grove 

River Forest 

Westchester 

Winfield 

Burr Ridge 

Compton Hills 

Elk Grove 

Glen Ellyn 

Green Oaks 

Homewood 

Lisle 

Mettawa 

Mount Prospect 

Round Lake 

Robbins 

Sleepy Hollow 

Third Lake 

Wauconda 

Wayne 

 

 



QUOTE 

DATE:

Projected Start Date:

Utility:

Number of Accounts:

December 2017Contract End Date:

$52,982

$53,425

$54,508

$53,549

Annual Contract Expense

CURRENT PROVIDER INFORMATION

Annual Supply Cost: $58,129

QUOTE INFORMATION

FixedProduct:

Electric Rate ($/kWh):

Supply Provider:

24 Months

36 Months

18 Months

12 Months

Term Length

Product Quoted: Fixed

QUOTE PRESENTATION

$0.05201

36 Months

$0.05251

24 Months

100%Pending Approval

$0.05136 Source Power & Gas

Supplier

 ↓ 8.1%

 ↓ 6.2%

 ↓ 7.9%

Annual Impact (%)

 ↓ 8.9%

Credit Status Bandwidth

Constellation

Electric Supply Pricing Proposal 5/11/2017

Constellation

$0.05635

Rate ($/kWh)

$0.05191

$0.05284

$0.05179

MOST COMPETITIVE SUPPLY QUOTES

Source Power & Gas

Direct Energy

Source Power & Gas

June 2016 - May 2017

Annual kWh: 1,031,576

$0.05256

5

ComEd - IL

December 2017

12-MONTH QUOTE COMPARISON

ACCOUNT INFORMATION

205 Schelter Rd., Lincolnshire, IL 60069

$0.05560

$0.06300

$0.05374

$0.05443

$0.05570

$0.05970

$0.05601

$0.05491

$0.05483

$0.05610

$0.05760

$0.05600

$0.05950

$0.05530

2747085009 0 E Riverwoods Rd., Lincolnshire, IL 60069 186,681 18.1%

7869160008

48.4%

Approved

Approved

Approved

$0.05426

-

100%$0.06310 2 Invoices Required

$0.05428

$0.05637

$0.05470 Pending Approval

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Approved

Approved$0.05367

$0.05389

$0.05530

$0.05920

USAGE HISTORY

$0.05529

The electricity quotes shown above are comprised of six 

major components: energy, capacity, transmission, ancillary 

costs, line losses, and Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) 

costs. Capacity itself is a regulated cost, meaning that the 

cost will be the same regardless of which supplier you choose 

to purchase your energy from. The table to the right shows 

the fluctuating costs of capacity over the next several years.

$0.01600

Est. Cost ($/kWh)

100%

Pending Approval

Approved

Approved

Approved

Pending Approval

June 2017 - May 2018

CAPACITY INFORMATION

272,010 26.4%

100%

100%

NOTES AND DISCLAIMERS

June 2019 - May 2020

$0.01059

June 2018 - May 2019 $0.02180

$0.02079

June 2015 - May 2016

Planning Year

$0.01415

9047167009 45 Londonderry Ln, Lincolnshire, IL 60069 54,045 5.2%

Service AddressAccount Number

1864074001 1 W. Oxford NS, Lincolnshire, IL 60069 20,051 1.9%

Annual kWh Usage %

4107087029 One Olde Half Day Rd., Lincolnshire, IL 60069 498,789

$0.05287

$0.05199

$0.05179Source Power & Gas

Engie Resources

Champion Energy

Direct Energy

$0.05569

$0.05454

$0.05152

$0.05136

Supplier

$0.05657

$0.05530

$0.05360

$0.05346

$0.06000

$0.05238MP2 Energy

$0.05637

$0.05641

$0.06330

$0.05520

mc2 Energy Services

Nordic Energy

$0.05228

$0.05191

18 Months

Hudson Energy

Ambit Energy

Dynegy Energy Services

Entrust Energy

Mint Energy

• All savings and expense impact figures displayed in the above proposal are estimates based on historical usage.

-

$0.05381

$0.05270

Village of Lincolnshire

• Pricing as quoted is valid until 5PM CST of the Quote Date.
• This offer is presented on behalf of the named providers and is to the best knowledge of Satori Energy.
• Satori Energy is not responsible for any changes relative to this offer that are unknown to us.
• Historical annual kWh is determined by calculating the last 12 months of usage as provided from the local utility.
• This proposal incorporates all costs except meter rentals, facility costs, delivery costs, and any city, county, or state sales tax and gross receipts tax (which are not subject to deregulation).
• This analysis is only for the named client's review and the client agrees not to share this proprietary information with any third parties unless required by law. Either party breaking this covenant will be liable for damages.
• All suppliers retain the ability to adjust prices due to a change in law imposed by a Governmental Authority or the regional Independent System Operator ("ISO").

↓ $4,580

Total Contract Impact ($)

↓ $5,148

↓ $4,704

↓ $4,580

Annual Impact ($)

↓ $3,621

↓ $15,443

↓ $9,408

↓ $5,431

$0.05284

$0.06410

12 Months

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Monthly Historical Usage (kWh)

$0.000
$0.010
$0.020
$0.030
$0.040
$0.050
$0.060
$0.070

Current Contract Rate vs. Supplier Quotes (12 Months)

Satori Energy

CONFIDENTIAL



 

Agenda Item 
3.31 COW 

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Committee of the Whole 
May 22, 2017 

 
 

Subject: Discussion of Use of Remaining ITEP Funds 
 
Action Requested: 

 
Direction from the Village Board on projects to use ITEP funds on 
future projects. 

 
Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
 
Walter Dittrich, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background:   
The Village received an Illinois Transportation Enhancement Project (ITEP) in December of 
2009 for $684,496.00 for use on various projects that would enhance the appearance and/or 
operation of various transportation corridors across the Village.  In February of 2010, the Mayor 
and Board of Trustees (MBOT) selected projects from the Corridor Enhancement Program for 
implementation utilizing the ITEP funds that included various landscaping treatments and 
signage enhancements.  At the March 9, 2015 COW Meeting, the Board discussed various uses 
of the funds which included IL 22 median enhancements and the current project on the Olde 
Half Day Road path as well as entry way signage enhancements and a project along Half Day 
Road between Riverwoods Road and Old Mill Road to remove invasive species and add 
amenities along the path through this area.  See below for additional details 
 
In the summer of 2016, Stage 1 – Half Day Road Median Enhancements was completed.  Work 
is nearly complete on Stage 2 – Olde Half Day Road Shared Use Path Enhancements. From 
discussions in March of 2015 and prior board meetings, Stage 3 was originally envisioned to be 
for the installation of two formal Village entry features with lannon stone edging, entry signage, 
landscaping, irrigation system and signage at either end of Illinois Route 22 and Stage 4 was for 
the installation of two formal Village entry features with lannon stone edging, entry signage, 
landscaping, irrigations system and signage at the west end of Aptakisic Road and south end of 
Riverwoods Road.  The final decisions on this portion of the project were deferred due to the 
uncertainty of the Village’s branding strategy 
 
In order to not lose the remaining $254,000 in ITEP funding and to appropriately program the 
remaining funds in the Villages 10 Year Capital Improvement Plan, staff seeks input from the 
Village Board on how to utilize the remaining funds.  Staff has worked with Gewalt Hamilton on 
the evaluation of shared use path connections that are consistent with the Villages long term 
bike and pedestrian plans.   
 
The attached report details out three projects where the ITEP funds could be utilized should the 
board desire to use these funds on path connections instead of new Village signage or other 
path enhancements as previously discussed.   
 
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.31 COW 

 
A brief funding summary for these improvements that would be incorporated into the 2018 
budget (depending on which projects are selected) is shown below: 
 

Stage Phase 1&2 
Eng. 

(100% Village cost) 

Phase 3 Eng. & 
Construction 

(80% ITEP/ 20% Village) 

Total 
Village 
Cost 

Total ITEP 
Cost 

Grand 
Total 

3A – 
Riverwoods 
Path 

 
$18,028 

 
$99,118 

 
$37,851 

 
$79,294 

 
$117,146 

3B – 
Westminster 
Improvements 

 
$19,726 

 
$108,491 

 
$41,424 

 
$86,793 

 
$128,217 

3C – 
Milwaukee 
Ave Path 

 
$43,130 

 
$237,217 

 
$90,573 

 
$189,774 

 
$280,347 

Grand Total   $169,849 $355,860 $525,710 
 
* If all three projects are desired, the Village could request an additional $102,000 in 
ITEP funding from IDOT or cover those costs with local funds. 
 

Budget Impact: The 2018 budget will include appropriate funding for Phase II engineering as 
well as construction and Phase III engineering based on the board’s direction. 
 
Recommendation:  Once staff receives direction from the Village Board, projects(s) will be 
incorporated into the 2018-2027 Capital Improvement Plan for the board’s consideration at a 
future board meeting. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached:  

• ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 
 

Meeting History 
Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): May 22, 2017 
 



 

Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program 
ITEP Project No. 102330 

Village of Lincolnshire 
Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 

 
Prepared for 

Village of Lincolnshire 
May  2017 

 
 
 

 

Prepared by: 
Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc. 

625 Forest Edge Drive 
Vernon Hills, IL 60061 

 

847-478-9700 



 

Table of Contents 
 
 

Section 1 

Background 

 
 

Section 2 

Stage 3 Proposed Projects 

 
 

Section 3 

Potential Challenges 

 
 

Section 4 

Preliminary Estimates of Construction Costs 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

Section 1 

Background 
ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 

 
 



 

Section 1 
Background 

ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 
 

 
In 2009, the Village of Lincolnshire secured $684,500.00 of funding through the Illinois Transportation Enhancement 
Program (ITEP) administered by the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) to develop and build safe, 
valuable and functional projects that will enhance the traditional programs of moving cars, trucks and transit from 
point A to point B. The potential eligible projects for this enhancement funding are improving pedestrian/bicycle 
facilities, landscape/streetscape and other scenic beautification and vegetation management in transportation right-
of-way, among others. 
 
Gewalt Hamilton Associates, Inc. was asked to assist the Village of Lincolnshire with design, construction and 
administration of the various stages of the program. Stage 1 is completed and consisted of landscaping four 
medians on IL Rte 22 (Half Day Road). Two of the medians were located near Hewitt Drive/Westminster Way and 
the other two were located on either side of US 45/IL 21 (Milwaukee Ave). Stage 2 is located on the north side of 
Olde Half Day Road between the Village Green and approximately 1000 feet west of the Des Plaines River. The 
project consists of clearing and grubbing, tree removal, planting and transplanting, trail relocation, mid-block 
pedestrian crossing improvements, seating areas, bollard lighting and restoration landscaping. Stage 2 has been 
bid under the guidance of the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), Bureau of Local Roads and Streets 
(BLRS). Stage 2 is currently under construction and will be completed in summer of 2017. (Exhibit 1) 
 
The Village of Lincolnshire original plans for Stages 3 and 4 of the ITEP grant were to design and install four formal 
entry features at the eastern and western Village limits along IL Rte 22 (Half Day Rd) and the western and southern 
Village limits along Aptakisic Road and Riverwoods Roads respectively. These formal entry features were to feature 
lannon stone walls, entry signage, landscaping, irrigation systems and signage lighting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Section 2 

Stage 3 Proposed Projects 
ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 

 
 



 

Section 2 
Stage 3 Proposed Projects 

ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 
 
 
As directed by the Village of Lincolnshire, GHA has combined the original Stage 3 and 4 into one stage and has 
redefined the project to connecting existing pedestrian/bicycle segments of various lengths and size. Three 
potential projects are described as follows: 
 
Project 1 
Multi-use pathway on the Westside of Riverwoods Road (CH 58) from Whytegate Park to Daniel Wright Junior High 
School. (Exhibit 2) 
 
The proposed section of pathway will link an existing internal concrete path in Whytegate Park (Village owned and 
maintained) to an existing asphalt path located on the south side of the south entrance/exit driveway to Daniel 
Wright Junior High School. The approximate length of the pathway is 1,560 lf and crosses one existing street 
(Whitemore Ln) and one proposed street Briarwood Lane to be built in 2018. 
 
The pathway will be located in several Village owned outlots or the dedicated 10’ sidewalk easement provided with 
the new subdivision. 
 
Project 2 
Westminster Way pedestrian crossing at CDW and eastside of Westminster Way Sidewalk Connection from 
Homewood Suites to CDW Pond Sidewalk. (Exhibit 3) 
 
This proposed section of sidewalk will link an existing 5’ wide concrete sidewalk that surrounds an existing retention 
pond to the existing entrance/exist driveway to Homewood Suites. The approximate length of sidewalk is 350 lf and 
will be located within the existing Westminster Way Right-of-Way. 
 
The pedestrian crossing of Westminster Way will possibly be located on the east leg of the entrance to the CDW 
office complex and through the existing landscaped center median. An alternate south leg to west leg crossing 
should also be investigated. 
 
Project 3 
Eastside of US 45/IL 21 (Milwaukee Ave) from Riverside Rd/Tower Pkwy to IL 22 (Half Day Rd). (Exhibit 4) 
 
This section of multi-use pathway will connect to the new section of the Des Plaines River Trail on the north side of 
Riverside Road and run on the eastside of US 45/IL 21 (Milwaukee Ave) to the existing path on the southeast 
corner of IL 22 (Half Day Rd). The multi-use pathway is approximately 3,375 lf in length and will cross two IDOT 
signalized intersections (Knightsbridge Pkwy and Marriot Dr.) along with Rivershire Lane and a right in/right out 
serving the Courtyard by Marriot Hotel. 
 
 
 
 
 



Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program
Village of Lincolnshire

Project Scope and Schedule
ITEP Project Number 102330

Revised 5/16/17 GHA
EXHIBIT 1

Year Location Description Total Cost Village ITEP

Spring  2016 
Stage 1

ILL Rte 22 - 2 Islands at ILL 
Rte 21 (Milwaukee Av) and 2 
Islands at Hewitt Drive

The Village will plant four existing medians located in the 
middle of ILL Rte 22 which are currently mowed turf grass.  
This project is in conjunction with recent widening of ILL Rte 
22 at ILL Rte 21 (Milwaukee Av) and the ILL Rte 22 at the I-
94 (Tri-State Tollway) and Hewitt Drive by IDOT.  IDOT is 
aware and supportive of the Village proposed work.  Shrubs, 
grasses and perennials installed in the medians.  Medians to 
match existing medians planted in conjunction with IDOT.

ITEP (80 Federal/20 Local)
Actual Construction 215,187.30$        43,037.46$          172,149.84$        

Phase III Construction Engineering 19,466.13$          3,893.23$            15,572.90$          
Total 234,653.43$        46,930.69$          187,722.74$        

Stage 1 Total 234,653.43$        46,930.69$          187,722.74$        

Spring 2017 
Stage 2

North side of Olde Half Day 
Road between east of 
Village Green and 
approximately 1000 feet 
west of the Des Plaines 
River

Clearing and grubbing, tree removal, planting and 
transplating, mid-block pedestrian crossing, path relocation, 
electrical access, restoration landscaping.

ITEP (80 Federal/20 Local)
Anticipated Construction 268,000.00$        53,600.00$          214,400.00$        

Phase III Construction Engineering 35,722.20$          7,144.44$            28,577.76$          

Total 303,722.20$        60,744.44$          242,977.76$        

Stage 2 Total 303,722.20$        60,744.44$          242,977.76$        

ITEP FUNDS EXPENDED (Stage1 and Stage2): 430,700.50$        
Total ITEP funding per Agreement: 684,500.00$        

Anticipated ITEP Funds Available after Stage1 and Stage 2: 253,799.50$        



Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program
Village of Lincolnshire

Project Scope and Schedule
ITEP Project Number 102330

Revised 5/16/17 GHA
EXHIBIT 1

Spring 2018 
Stage 3A

West side of Riverwoods 
Road from Wytegate Park to 
Daniel Wright Junior High 
School

Installation of 8-foot wide asphalt path.  Clearing of exisitng 
vegetation, excavation, aggregate and asphalt cross-section 
and landscaping restoration.

Village (100%)
Phase I and II Design Engineering 18,028.00$          18,028.00$          

18,028.00$          18,028.00$          
ITEP (80 Federal/20 Local)

Construction 90,104.00$          18,020.80$          72,083.20$          
Phase III Construction Engineering 9,014.00$            1,802.80$            7,211.20$            

Total 99,118.00$          19,823.60$          79,294.40$          
Stage 3A Total 117,146.00$        37,851.60$          79,294.40$          

Spring 2018 
Stage 3B

East side of Westminster 
Way from CDW to 
Homewood Suites

Installation of a 7-foot wide concrete sidewalk, segmental 
wall, excavation, minor pavement markings and restoration

Village (100%)
Phase I and II Design Engineering 19,726.00$          19,726.00$          

19,726.00$          19,726.00$          
ITEP (80 Federal/20 Local)

Construction 98,628.00$          19,725.60$          78,902.40$          
Phase III Construction Engineering 9,863.00$            1,972.60$            7,890.40$            

Total 108,491.00$        21,698.20$          86,792.80$          
Stage 3B Total 128,217.00$        41,424.20$          86,792.80$          

Spring 2018 
Stage 3C

East side of US 45/IL 21 
(Milwaukee Avenue) from 
Riverside Road/Tower 
Parkway to IL Route 22 (Half 
Day Road)

Installation of an 8-foot wide multi-use asphalt or concrete 
path, possible enclosed drainage system, pedestrian traffic 
signal improvements, segmental wall and landscape 
restoration

Village (100%)
Phase I and II Design Engineering 43,130.00$          43,130.00$          

43,130.00$          43,130.00$          
ITEP (80 Federal/20 Local)

Construction 215,652.00$        43,130.40$          172,521.60$        
Phase III Construction Engineering 21,565.00$          4,313.00$            17,252.00$          

Total 237,217.00$        47,443.40$          189,773.60$        
Stage 3C Total 280,347.00$        90,573.40$          189,773.60$        

Total Stage 3A+3B+3C: 525,710.00$        169,849.20$        355,860.80$        

ITEP SUMMARY
Totals Local (20%) ITEP (80%)

Stage 1 (Const & Phase III) 234,653.43$        46,930.69$          187,722.74$        
Stage 2 (Const & Phase III) 303,722.20$        60,744.44$          242,977.76$        

Stage 3A (Const & Phase III) 117,146.00$        37,851.60$          79,294.40$          
Stage 3B (Const & Phase III) 128,217.00$        41,424.20$          86,792.80$          
Stage 3C (Const & Phase III) 280,347.00$        90,573.40$          189,773.60$        

Totals 1,064,085.63$     277,524.33$        786,561.30$        

Per ITEP Agreement: 684,500.00$        
Totals 1,064,085.63$     277,524.33$        786,561.30$        

Anticipated additional local funds needed: (102,061.30)$       
Note:  the above dollar amounts do not account for any land acquisition costs if property acquisition is needed (plat 
preparation, title commitments, appraisals, negotiations, etc.)



Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

Exhibit 2
Project 1 - West Side of Riverwoods Road (CH58)

From Whytegate Park to Daniel Wright Junior High School
ITEP Stage III Concept Plan

Village of Lincolnshire, Illinois

Dr
aw

n B
y: 

gn
ew

ton
Fil

e: 
G:

\49
00

\49
04

.00
4 L

inc
oln

sh
ire

 IT
EP

 S
tag

e I
II C

on
ce

pt 
Pla

n\G
IS

\M
ap

pin
g\4

90
4_

00
4_

Pr
oje

ct_
1_

Riv
erw

oo
ds

_R
oa

d.m
xd

Date: 5/12/2017 Project: 4904.004MapCode:

So
urc

es
: S

ou
rce

s: 
Es

ri, 
HE

RE
, D

eL
orm

e, 
Int

erm
ap

, in
cre

me
nt 

P 
Co

rp.
, G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

 sw
iss

top
o, 

Ma
pm

yIn
dia

, ©
 O

pe
nS

tre
etM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS
 U

se
r C

om
mu

nit
y

o 300
Feet

1 inch =

Legend
Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

! ! ! ! ! ! ! Existing Sidewalk/Trail
Parcel Boundary
Village of Lincolnshire Parcel



Alternative Crossing

Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

Exhibit 3
Project 2 - Westminster Way Pedestrian Crossing & Sidewalk Connection

Sidewalk Crossing at CDW and Eastside Westminster Way
Sidewalk Connection from Homewood Suites to CDW Pond Sidewalk

ITEP Stage III Concept Plan - Village of Lincolnshire, Illinois

Dr
aw

n B
y: 

gn
ew

ton
Fil

e: 
G:

\49
00

\49
04

.00
4 L

inc
oln

sh
ire

 IT
EP

 S
tag

e I
II C

on
ce

pt 
Pla

n\G
IS

\M
ap

pin
g\4

90
4_

00
4_

Pr
oje

ct_
2_

We
stm

ins
ter

_W
ay

.m
xd

Date: 5/12/2017 Project: 4904.004

So
urc

es
: S

ou
rce

s: 
Es

ri, 
HE

RE
, D

eL
orm

e, 
Int

erm
ap

, in
cre

me
nt 

P 
Co

rp.
, G

EB
CO

, U
SG

S,
 FA

O,
 N

PS
, N

RC
AN

, G
eo

Ba
se

, IG
N,

 K
ad

as
ter

 N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 S
urv

ey
, E

sri
 Ja

pa
n, 

ME
TI,

 E
sri

 C
hin

a (
Ho

ng
 K

on
g),

 sw
iss

top
o, 

Ma
pm

yIn
dia

, ©
 O

pe
nS

tre
etM

ap
 co

ntr
ibu

tor
s, 

an
d t

he
 G

IS
 U

se
r C

om
mu

nit
y

o 200
Feet

1 inch =

Legend
Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

! ! ! ! ! ! ! Existing Sidewalk/Trail
Village of Lincolnshire Parcel
Parcel Boundary

CDW



Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

Exhibit 4
Project 3 - East Side of US 45/IL 21 (Milwaukee Ave)

From Tower Parkway/Riverside Road to IL 22 (Half Day Road)
ITEP Stage III Concept Plan

Village of Lincolnshire, Illinois

Dr
aw

n B
y: 

gn
ew

ton
Fil

e: 
G:

\49
00

\49
04

.00
4 L

inc
oln

sh
ire

 IT
EP

 St
ag

e I
II C

on
ce

pt 
Pla

n\G
IS\

Ma
pp

ing
\49

04
_0

04
_P

roj
ec

t_3
_M

ilw
au

ke
e_

Av
e.m

xd

Date: 5/12/2017 Project: 4904.004

So
urc

es
: S

ou
rce

s: 
Es

ri, 
HE

RE
, D

eL
orm

e, 
Int

erm
ap

, in
cre

me
nt 

P C
orp

., G
EB

CO
, U

SG
S, 

FA
O,

 N
PS

, N
RC

AN
, G

eo
Ba

se
, IG

N,
 Ka

da
ste

r N
L, 

Or
dn

an
ce

 Su
rve

y, 
Es

ri J
ap

an
, M

ET
I, E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 Ko
ng

), s
wis

sto
po

, M
ap

my
Ind

ia,
 ©

 O
pe

nS
tre

etM
ap

 co
ntr

ibu
tor

s, 
an

d t
he

 G
IS 

Us
er 

Co
mm

un
ity

o 300
Feet

1 inch =

Legend
Proposed Sidewalk/Trail

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Existing Sidewalk/Trail
Village of Lincolnshire Parcel
Parcel Boundary



 

 

Section 3 

Stage 3 Potential Challenges 
ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Section 3 
Stage 3 Potential Challenges 

ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 
 

Project 1 
The proposed 8’ wide asphalt path will be designed and constructed in accordance with the Lake County Division of 
Transportation (LCDOT) Standard LC4051. The Village of Lincolnshire has jurisdiction of the lots adjoining the 
frontage of Riverwoods Road, on both sides of Brampton Lane and both sides of Whitmore Lane. but the south lot 
is entirely a detention area for the Whitmore Lane subdivision. The lot south of Whitmore Lane contains a detention 
area for the Whitmore Lane subdivision and has limited area for the proposed path. The proposed path may need to 
be located in the Riverwoods Road (CH 58) Right-of-Way that is under Lake County jurisdiction which would entail 
LCDOT review, approval and permitting procedures. 
 
A proposed 10’ path easement along the Riverwoods Road frontage of the proposed Manors of Whytegate 
subdivision will need to be dedicated to build the path in this easement and into Whytegate Park. Coordination with 
the developer to access the dedicated easement is essential. IDOT-BLRS will require easement platting in place 
prior to letting of the improvements. 
 
Project 2 
The proposed 7’ wide concrete sidewalk will be designed to be installed as a carriage walk off the back of the 
existing curb and gutter. There currently is an existing berm along the frontage of the property between the CDW 
retention pond and Homewood Suites that might need walled due to out of Right-of-Way grading considerations. 
 
The pedestrian sidewalk crossing the entrance to the CDW complex might have site issues between pedestrians 
and vehicles leaving the CDW parking lot due to heavy existing vegetation in the center median island. An 
alternative crossing the south and east legs of the intersection should be considered. 
 
Project 3 
The proposed 8’ wide multi-use path will be constructed with an asphalt or concrete surface, depending if the path 
is located is located along the existing Right-of-Way or along the existing back of curb used for the right turn lanes 
at IL 22 (Half Day Road), Marriott Drive, Jamestown Lane/Knightsbridge Parkway or Rivershire Lane. Due to the 
existing gutter outlets at the right turn locations, additional curb and gutter and an enclosed drainage system will 
need to be constructed. Currently, there is an existing ditch system that outflows to the existing ponds at Rivershire 
Lane. Several existing handholes or quazite utility boxes will need to be adjusted due to the grade changes and/or 
path locations. Limited existing Right-of-Way will limit the location of the path. Approximately 1,800 LF of multi-use 
path would be reconstructed from Jamestown Lane/Knightsbridge Parkway to IL 22 (Half Day Road) as part of the 
future US 45/IL 21 Roadway Widening Project. The ITEP multi-use path would be located within the existing Right-
of-Way but is located in the future third northbound lane or right turn lane at IL 22 (Half Day Road). Federally 
funded improvements generally should have a 20-year life span and this period is unknown at this time. The two 
IDOT traffic signals will need pedestrian actuated traffic signal improvement at Marriott Drive and Jamestown 
Lane/Knightsbridge Parkway. There is a possibility of a segmental wall along the existing Right-of-Way on either 
side of Rivershire Lane due to the heavily planted berm with mature trees. An IDOT permit will be needed as part of 
the ITEP process.    
 
Note that each project location will also require compliance with local ordinances as well as compliance with the 
Lake County Stormwater Management Ordinance.  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 4 

Preliminary Estimate of Construction Costs 
ITEP Stage 3 Project Scoping Study 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
JOB NAME: Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program

ITEP Project No.102330 - Village of Lincolnshire
Stage 3 Project Scoping Study

Location: Westside of Riverwoods Road (CH 58) from
Whytegate Park to Daniel Wright Junior High School

GHA Project #: 4904.004

Date: May 15, 2017
Prepared by: Jim Deferville
Checked by: Todd Gordon, P.E.

Item # Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total Price

20101300 Tree Pruning (1 to 10 inch Diameter) 12.0 EA $35.00 $420.00
20101000 Temporary Fence 200.0 FT $7.50 $1,500.00
20101400 Nitrogen Fertilizer Nutrient 100.0 LB $2.00 $200.00
20101600 Potassium Fertilizer Nutrient 100.0 LB $2.00 $200.00
20200100 Earth Excavation 380.0 CY $55.00 $20,900.00
21101625 Topsoil Furnish and Place 6" 700.0 SY $5.00 $3,500.00
25000210 Seeding, Class 2A 0.5 AC $2,500.00 $1,250.00
25100630 Erosion Control Blanket 700.0 SY $1.50 $1,050.00
28000500 Inlet and Pipe Protection 8.0 EA $250.00 $2,000.00
35101800 Aggregate Base Course, Type B 6" 430.0 TN $5.00 $2,150.00
40603335 3" Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix "D", N50 220.0 TN $82.00 $18,040.00
42400100 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk 5" 640.0 SF $10.00 $6,400.00
42400800 Detectable Warning 128.0 SF $30.00 $3,840.00
44000500 Combination Curb and Gutter Removal 80.0 SF $10.00 $800.00
44201976 Class D Patches, Type I-IV 6" (Special) 10.0 SY $200.00 $2,000.00
60603800 Combination Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type B-6.12 50.0 FT $25.00 $1,250.00
67100100 Mobilization 1.0 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00
70101700 Traffic Control and Protection 1.0 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00
78000600 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Line 12" 72.0 FT $20.00 $1,440.00
78000650 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Line 24" 18.0 FT $22.00 $396.00
78300100 Pavement Marking Removal 36.0 SF $5.00 $180.00
X0100003 Cleaning and Grubbing 600.0 SY $1.50 $900.00
X7240505 Relocate Sign Panel and Part 2.0 EA $300.00 $600.00
20062000 Sawcutting 50.0 FT $2.00 $100.00

$75,116.00
$15,023.20

$90,139.20
Phase I $9,013.92
Phase II $9,013.92
Phase III $9,013.92

$117,180.96

Preliminary EOPC - Project 1

*Since Gewalt-Hamilton Associates Inc. Has No Control Over the Cost of Labor, Materials, or Equipment, or Over the Contractor's 
Methods of Determining Prices, or Over Competitive Bidding of Market Conditions, Opinions of Probable Costs, as Provided for Herein, 
Are to be Made on the Basis of Experience and Qualifications and Represent the Best Judgement as a Design Professional Familiar with 
the Construction Industry.  Gewalt-Hamilton Associates, Inc., Cannot and Does Not Guarantee That Proposals, Bids, or The Construction 
Costs Will Not Vary From Opinions of Probable Cost Prepared for the Owner.

Total:

20% Contingency

Sub-Total:

Exhibit 5



ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST
JOB NAME: Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program

ITEP Project No.102330 - Village of Lincolnshire
Stage 3 Project Scoping Study

Location: Westminster Way Pedestrian Crossing at 
CDW and Eastside of Westminster Way
Sidewalk Connection from Homewood
Suites to CDW Pond Sidewalk

GHA Project #: 4904.004

Date: May 15, 2017
Prepared by: Jim Deferville
Checked by: Todd Gordon, P.E.

Item # Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total Price

20101000 Temporary Fence 100.0 FT $7.50 $750.00
20200100 Earth Excavation 100.0 CY $55.00 $5,500.00
21101625 Topsoil Furnish and Place, 6" 200.0 SY $5.00 $1,000.00
25200110 Sodding, Salt Tolerant 200.0 SY $15.00 $3,000.00
28000500 Inlet and Pipe Protection 5.0 EA $250.00 $1,250.00
31101200 Sub-Base Granular Material, Type B, 4" 310.0 SY $5.00 $1,550.00
42400100 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk 5" 2,800.0 SF $10.00 $28,000.00
42400800 Detectable Warning 76.0 SF $30.00 $2,280.00
44000500 Combination Curb and Gutter Removal 60.0 FT $10.00 $600.00
44201976 Class D Patches, Type I-IV 6" (Special) 6.0 SY $200.00 $1,200.00
52200800 Segmented Concrete Black Wall 550.0 SF $50.00 $27,500.00
60603800 Combination Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type B-6.12 60.0 FT $25.00 $1,500.00
67100100 Mobilization 1.0 LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00
70101700 Traffic Control and Protection 1.0 LS $3,500.00 $3,500.00
78000600 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking, Line 12" 84.0 FT $20.00 $1,680.00
X7240505 Relocate Sign Panel and Pole 1.0 EA $300.00 $300.00
20062000 Sawcutting 40.0 FT $2.00 $80.00

$82,190.00
$16,438.00

$98,628.00
Phase I $9,862.80
Phase II $9,862.80
Phase III $9,862.80

$128,216.40

Preliminary EOPC - Project 2

*Since Gewalt-Hamilton Associates Inc. Has No Control Over the Cost of Labor, Materials, or Equipment, or Over the Contractor's Methods of Determining Prices, or Over 
Competitive Bidding of Market Conditions, Opinions of Probable Costs, as Provided for Herein, Are to be Made on the Basis of Experience and Qualifications and 
Represent the Best Judgement as a Design Professional Familiar with the Construction Industry.  Gewalt-Hamilton Associates, Inc., Cannot and Does Not Guarantee That 
Proposals, Bids, or The Construction Costs Will Not Vary From Opinions of Probable Cost Prepared for the Owner.

Total:

20% Contingency:

Sub-total:

Exhibit 6



JOB NAME: Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program
ITEP Project No.102330 - Village of Lincolnshire
Stage 3 Project Scoping Study

Location: Eastside of US 45/IL 21 (Milwaukee Avenue)
from Tower Parkway to IL 22 (Half Day Road)

GHA Project #:4904.004

Date: May 15, 2017
Prepared by: Jim Deferville
Checked by: Todd Gordon, P.E.

Item # Description Qty Unit Unit Price Total Price

20101000 Temporary Fence 500.0 FT $7.50 $3,750.00
20200100 Earth Excavation 750.0 CY $55.00 $41,250.00
21101615 Topsoil Furnish and Place 6" 1,000.0 SY $5.00 $5,000.00
25000210 Seeding, Class 2A 1.5 AC $2,500.00 $3,750.00
25000400 Nitrogen Fertilizer Nutrient 500.0 LB $2.00 $1,000.00
25000600 Potassium Fertilizer Nutrient 500.0 LB $2.00 $1,000.00
25100630 Erosion Control Blanket 1,000.0 SY $5.00 $5,000.00
28000500 Inlet and Pipe Protection 8.0 EA $150.00 $1,200.00
35101800 Aggregate Base Course, Type B 6" 900.0 TN $5.00 $4,500.00
40603335 3" Hot-Mix Asphalt Surface Course, Mix "D", N50 460.0 TN $90.00 $41,400.00
42400200 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk 5" 640.0 SF $10.00 $6,400.00
42400800 Detectable Warning 128.0 SF $30.00 $3,840.00
44000500 Combination Curb and Gutter Removal 150.0 FT $6.00 $900.00
44003100 Median Removal 300.0 SF $10.00 $3,000.00
44201976 Class D Patches, Type I-V 6" (Special) 16.0 SY $200.00 $3,200.00
60603800 Combination Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type B-6.12 700.0 FT $20.00 $14,000.00
67100100 Mobilization 1.0 LS $6,000.00 $6,000.00
70101700 Traffic Control and Protection 1.0 LS $7,750.00 $7,750.00
78000600 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking - Line 12" 450.0 FT $6.00 $2,700.00
78000650 Thermoplastic Pavement Marking - Line 24" 80.0 FT $15.00 $1,200.00
78300100 Pavement Marking Removal 160.0 SF $2.00 $320.00
81028220 Underground Conduit, Galvanized Steel, 3" Dia. 80.0 FT $35.00 $2,800.00
85000200 Maintenance of Existing Traffic Signal Installation 2.0 EA $825.00 $1,650.00
87301215 Electric Cable in Conduit, Signal No. 14 2C 300.0 FT $1.00 $300.00
87301225 Eletric Cable in Conduit, Signal No. 14 3C 380.0 FT $1.25 $475.00
87301900 Electric Cable in Conduit Equipment Grounding Conductor No. 6 1C 100.0 FT $1.75 $175.00
87502440 Traffic Signal Post, Galvanized Steel 10 FT 4.0 EA $900.00 $3,600.00
87800100 Concrete Foundation, Type A 16.0 FT $300.00 $4,800.00
87900200 Drill Existing Handhole 4.0 EA $300.00 $1,200.00
88102717 Pedestrian Signal Head LED, 1-Face, Bracket Mounded w/Countdown Timer 4.0 EA $1,000.00 $4,000.00
88800100 Pedestrian Push-Button 4.0 EA $325.00 $1,300.00
895002210 Modify Existing Controller Cabinet 1.0 EA $2,250.00 $2,250.00

$179,710.00
$35,942.00

$215,652.00
Phase I $21,565.20
Phase II $21,565.20
Phase III $21,565.20

$280,347.60

Preliminary EOPC - Project 3

*Since Gewalt-Hamilton Associates Inc. Has No Control Over the Cost of Labor, Materials, or Equipment, or Over the Contractor's Methods of Determining Prices, or Over 
Competitive Bidding of Market Conditions, Opinions of Probable Costs, as Provided for Herein, Are to be Made on the Basis of Experience and Qualifications and Represent the 
Best Judgement as a Design Professional Familiar with the Construction Industry.  Gewalt-Hamilton Associates, Inc., Cannot and Does Not Guarantee That Proposals, Bids, or The 
Construction Costs Will Not Vary From Opinions of Probable Cost Prepared for the Owner.

Total:

20% Contingency:

Sub-total:

Exhibit 7



 

Agenda Item 
3.32 COW 

 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole 

May 22, 2017 
 

Subject: Consideration and Discussion of a Corporate Center Tree Removal 
Project 

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration, Discussion and Recommendation 

 
Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background: 
At the February 27, 2017 Regular Village Board meeting, The Village Board directed Staff to 
identify ten (10) priority areas in the Village’s business parks  and bring them back to the Board 
for further consideration as part of a possible program to incentivize tree removal in the Village’s 
corporate center.  Staff intends to work with each of the identified properties outline within this 
memo and plans to utilize Village Tree Bank funds to assist in addressing issues regarding the 
identified hazardous/dead tree removals. Staff has identified the following as critical addresses 
within the corporate center that are in need of tree removals: 
 

300 Knightsbridge Pkwy  
450 Barclay Blvd  
350 Barclay Blvd  
550 Barclay Blvd  
3 Overlook Point  
500 Barclay Blvd  
333 Knightsbridge Pkwy  
4 Tower Pkwy  
111 Barclay Blvd  
595 Bond St  
300 Marriott Dry  
400 Knightsbridge Pkwy  

 
Staff has also included a draft letter which would be sent to each of the corporate residents. 
Meetings would be set-up with Village staff to meet on-site, tag and/or mark trees for removal, 
and identify a time frame for removals. Staff would also work with each corporate resident to 
identify requirements related to the replacement of the removed trees.  Below are photos of 
some of the locations identified by Village Staff: 
 

      
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.32 COW 

 
 

                                
 
Staff has taken into consideration comments and direction from the Village Board at past 
meetings and recommends the Village Board consider offering the following options: 
  
Option 1: 
Each commercial property would be eligible for reimbursement up to 50% of the cost of 
removals with a maximum of $5,000.00 per applicant. Each property would be responsible for 
contracting the removals with their own company, but be eligible for re-imbursement. Each 
business would be eligible for no more than $5,000.00 annually. Each commercial applicant 
would then provide the Village receipts for removals. The Village would verify the removals 
and would reimburse up to 50% of the total cost of removals at a maximum of $5,000.00 per 
applicant.  If all 10 property owners participate, this would incur a total cost to the Tree Bank 
funds in the amount of $50,000. 
 
Option 2: 
The Village would work exclusively with each corporate property but would instead utilize the 
Village’s contracted tree removal company. Staff would carefully prioritize the removals at each 
property taking into consideration issues including safety, health, size and location. Village Staff 
would prioritize each project with a goal of staying within $30,000 for the year in total. This 
amount has been what the Village has traditionally allocated towards the Spring Tree Adoption 
program on an annual basis. Each property could be different in the amount allocated based on 
the amount of removals needed at each location. There would be no re-imbursement as the 
Village would be billed directly by its tree removal contractor. The Village would work with each 
property to finalize a commitment to re-plant a number of trees to be determined by the Village’s 
certified arborists on a case-by-case basis in accordance with good forestry practices.  
 
Option 3: 
The Village would work exclusively with each corporate property but would utilize the Village’s 
contracted tree removal company to remove all dead/dying trees on all private properties 
identified within this memorandum. This option could cost an estimated $115,000.00 in the first 
year of the program to address the ten identified properties.  If additional properties are 
identified in future years and a similar amount of tree removal is needed as what would be 
completed in the first year, the Village’s Tree Bank would be spent down within 2-3 years. 
Again, there would be no re-imbursement as the Village would be billed directly by its tree 
removal contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item 
3.32 COW 

 
 
Below is a table which illustrates the differences between the different options presented above: 
 

Option Cost Share 
Y/N 

Village 
Contractor 

 

Reimbursement 
Y/N 

Total Annual 
Cost 

 

No. of Years to 
Expend Tree 
Bank Funds 

1 Yes No Y $50,000 6 Years 
2 No Yes N $30,000 10 Years 
3 No Yes N $115,000 3 Years 

 
Budget Impact: 
Currently the Village Tree Bank contains $277,048.43. Removing all of the trees identified by 
Staff would cost an estimated $115,650.00. Village Staff would like direction from the Village 
Board as to how much funding they would like to dedicate toward tree removal in the corporate 
center area of the Village.  
 
Service Delivery Impact: 
Working with Corporate Center tenants will improve relations between the Village and 
businesses in Lincolnshire and also significantly improve the aesthetic features of the Corporate 
Center which could ultimately attract future tenants.  
 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends “Option 2” as this would be the option Staff feels strikes a good balance with 
removals and a commitment towards re-planting. Staff is seeking a recommendation to allow 
Staff to work with the Corporate Center clients outlined in the memo to remove tries on the 
identified properties. Staff would give each property owner a deadline of July 30th to respond 
back to the Village with regards to the removal assistance. Finally, Staff would like to know 
which of the options presented is the preferred option of the Village Board.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

• List of tree removal projects within the Corporate Center 
• Draft letter to Corporate Center businesses outlined in this memo 

 
Meeting History 

Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): May 22, 2017 
 
 



Corporate Center  –  Dead/Hazardous Tree Removal Project 

  

Address No. of Trees Species Estimated Cost 

    
300 Knightsbridge Pkwy 36 Austrian Pine, Ash $16,200.00 
450 Barclay Blvd 33 Ash, Austrian Pine $14,850.00 
350 Barclay Blvd 29 Ash, Austrian Pine, Willow $13,050.00 
550 Barclay Blvd 23 Ash, Austrian Pine $10,350.00 
3 Overlook Point 22 Ash, Austrian Pine $9,900.00 
500 Barclay Blvd 20 Austrian Pine $9,000.00 
333 Knightsbridge Pkwy 20 Austrian Pine $9,000.00 
4 Tower Pkwy 20 Austrian Pine $9,000.00 
111 Barclay Blvd 19 Ash, Austrian Pine $8,550.00 
595 Bond St 16 Ash, Austrian Pine $7,200.00 
300 Marriott Dr 13 Ash $5,850.00 
400 Knightsbridge Pkwy 6 Ash, Crab, Pear $2,700.00 

 

Total 257 Various $115,650.00 
 

 Estimated Cost based off an estimate of $450.00 per tree 

 Current Balance in Village Tree Bank - $277,048.43 

 



 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d ,  L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 | www. l incolnsh ire i l . gov  

 
 

2017 Corporate Center – Tree Removal Project 
 
 
           

May 22, 2017 
 
 
Dear Corporate Resident: 
 
The Village has identified several hazardous/diseased and/or dead trees located on 
your property. The purpose of this letter is to reach out to you to assist in the removal of 
many of these trees. This year, Village staff has amended the tree preservation 
ordinance, and as a result the Village is authorized to utilize tree bank funds (forfeited 
tree deposit’s) towards tree removals in addition to tree plantings. The Village Board 
has directed Staff to identify ten (10) locations within the Village to assist with removals 
and your address was identified.  
 
Additionally, the Village has identified the following trees on your property: 
 
 
       Address     No. of Trees                                          Species 
  300 Knightsbridge Pkwy 36 Austrian Pine, Ash 
 
 
The Village would like to offer to remove many of these trees completely at our cost.  
As a condition of assisting with the removals, the Village would require you install a 
minimum of a 2.5” Appendix A tree (per tree removed) anywhere on your property.  
 
The Village of Lincolnshire is committed to working with corporate residents to ensure 
hazardous and diseased tree issues are addressed. Please contact me directly at 
847.913.2381 or by email at bwoodbury@lincolnshireil.gov to set-up a meeting with one 
of our certified arborists to assist with identifying an action plan for your property or to 
answer any questions.    
 
 
Sincerely, 
The Village of Lincolnshire 
 
 
Bradford H. Woodbury 
Public Works Director. 
 

mailto:bwoodbury@lincolnshireil.gov


 
 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Committee of the Whole Meeting 

May 22, 2017 
 

Subject:  Street Use Permit for the Village of Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire 
Sports Association (LSA) 

 
Action Requested: 

 
Consideration and Discussion of Village of Lincolnshire and 
Lincolnshire Sports Association Request to Use Village Streets for 
Annual Fourth of July Parade and Race and Granting a Waiver of 
the Village Street Usage Policy Cash Bond Requirement(Village of 
Lincolnshire / Lincolnshire Sports Association) 

 
Originated By/Contact: 

 
Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background: The Village of Lincolnshire and the Lincolnshire Sports Association 
(LSA) requests the use of Village streets for the 4th of July race and parade, as well as Spring 
Lake Park, for the annual July 3rd and 4th activities. 
 
Village Staff has had an active role in the planning for the 2017 Fourth of July event and all 
preparation is on schedule. The Village has been working with the Lincolnshire Sports 
Association (LSA) and requests the Mayor and Village Board waive the $1,000 bond for 
maintenance required by the street use policy.  The Certificates of Insurance for the race and 
parade have been provided and the insurance requirements would be covered under the 
umbrella of the Village’s general liability insurance. Village Staff has also secured the permit 
through Lake County with regards to the 4th of July parade and the temporary closure of 
Riverwoods Road during the parade. All the proper documentation related to this permit is 
included for review.  
 
Budget Impact: None 
 
Service Delivery Impact: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends the Street Use Permit and waiver of Cash Bond 
Requirement be approved. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• Copy of completed Street Use Permit Form 
• 4th of July 5k Race Map 
• Lake County Temporary Road Closure Approved Permit 
• 4th of July Parade Route Map 

 
Meeting History 

Initial Referral to Village Board (COW): May 22, 2017 
 

 

Agenda Item 
3.33 COW 

 



 
 

One Olde Half Day Road 
Lincolnshire, IL 60069 
Ph: 847.883.8600 | Fax: 847.883.8608 
www.village.lincolnshire.il.us 

  

VVIILLLLAAGGEE  SSTTRREEEETT  UUSSAAGGEE    
PPEERRMMIITT  AAPPPPLLIICCAATTIIOONN  
Permit # ____________________ 
APPLICANT INFORMATION  

Name of 
Event: 

 
Group Sponsoring 
Event: 

 

Name of Event Director:  

Address:  Unit #:  

City:  State:  Zip Code:  

Telephone:  (          ) Business: (          ) 

Email:  

Date & Time 
Requested 

 

 

Spring (March, April, May) Summer (June, July, Aug.) Fall (Sept., Oct.) 

 
Date of Event:  

 
Starting Time: 

    

 
Est. Number  of 
Participants 

 

 
Ending Time: 

 

 
Has your group held an event in Lincolnshire before?             Yes        No 
If so, when was the most recent event? _________________________________________________________ 
 
How many consecutive years has the event been held? ____________________________________________ 
 
Medical personnel must be present during the entire event.  Please list the names of the doctors who will be 
participating: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 

• A cash bond in the amount of $1,000 is required and must be submitted at least 30 days prior to the 
event.  

• A Certificate of insurance must be provided to the village showing the applicant has coverage of 
comprehensive general liability and automobile liability in a minimum amount of one (1) million dollars. 

• There shall be a maximum of 1,000 participants and the event shall be limited to 3.1 miles or 5km.  

SIGNATURE 

 
_________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Signature of Applicant     Printed Name and Title 
 

The permit for the event proposed is hereby approved, based upon the information contained in this application 
and the provisions of the Village Code and Village Street Usage Policy.  THIS PERMIT MAY BE REVOKED 
FOR DUE CAUSE OR IN CASE OF AN EMERGENCY AT THE SOLE DISCRETION OF THE VILLAGE 
 
Date Approved: ____________________________ ________________________________________ 
        Public Works Director 

http://www.village.lincolnshire.il.us








 

Village of Lincolnshire 4
th

 of July 5K Race Map 
 
Start/Finish:  Tuesday July 4, 2017 8:00am - Spring Lake Park at the corner 

of Oxford Drive and Lincolnshire Drive in Lincolnshire, IL 60069.   
 

Parking:  Do NOT park on Lincolnshire Drive.  Parking is available north of 

Route 22 at the Lincolnshire Club on Elm Road. 

 
 

5K Race Route Map 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

Village of Lincolnshire 4th of July Parade Route Map 
 
 

2017 July 4th Parade Details 
 Tuesday, July 4th, 2017 10am to 11:30am 
 600 Participants 
 10 Floats 
 15 Trucks  
 
Need to close Riverwoods Road to traffic so parade can cross from Buckingham 
Place to Yorkshire Blvd. between 10:30am-11:30am. 
 

 

Parade Route Map: 
 

 
 


















	2017_05_22_COW_Agenda
	2.1 05-08-2017 SCOW Minutes
	2.2 05-08-2017 COW Minutes
	3.11COW_CamberleyClubRevisedUnitMix_5_22_17
	EX140180-dimension plan-SP1
	EX140180-dimension plan-SP2
	EX140180-dimension plan-SP3
	EX140180-dimension plan-SP4

	3.12COW_100BrookwoodCovenants_5_22-17
	3.21 COW_2017_05_22_Energy_Contract_Non_Franchise_Accts
	3.21 COW_2017_05_22_Energy_Contract_Non_Franchise_Accts
	board meeting memo 052217
	Village of Lincolnshire Electric Pricing Proposal 051117

	3.31_ITEP_Stage_3
	2017_05_22_ITEP_Stage_3
	2017_05_22_ITEP_Scoping_Study

	3.32_Corporate_Center_Tree_Removals
	2017_05_22_Corporate Center Tree Removals
	No. of Years to Expend Tree Bank Funds
	Total Annual Cost
	Reimbursement
	Village
	Cost Share
	Option
	Y/N
	Contractor
	6 Years
	$50,000
	Y
	No
	Yes
	1
	10 Years
	$30,000
	N
	Yes
	No
	2
	3 Years
	$115,000
	N
	Yes
	No
	3

	Corporate Center-Tree Removal Overview
	2017_Tree_Removal_Project_letter

	3.33 LSA_Street_Use
	2017_05_22_Lincolnshire_Street_Usage_Permit.doc
	2017_05_22_Lincolnshire_Street_Usage_Permit
	Village_Street_Usage_Permit_Application
	street_usage

	2017_05_22_Lincolnshire 4th of July 5K Race Map
	2017_05_22_ Lincolnshire 4th of July Parade Route Map
	Lake County Temporary Road Closure Permit


	Event: Red, White and Boom - 4th of July 5K
	undefined: Lincolnshire Community Association
	Event_2: Elizabeth J. Brandt/Scott Harper
	Address: 217 Brampton / P.O. Box 286
	Unit: 
	City: Lincolnshire
	State: IL
	Zip Code: 60069
	Phone:   847   682-3614
	Business: 847     883-8600
	Email: Scott.Harper@Allstate.com
	Requested:              July 4, 2017  8:00am-11:00am
	1: July 4, 2017
	2: 8:00am
	1_2: 600
	2_2: 11:00am
	Yes: Yes
	No: Off
	If so when was the most recent event: July 4, 2016
	How many consecutive years has the event been held: 30 + Years
	participating: Lincolnshire Riverwoods Fire Protection District (LRFPD) to provide Ambulance and EMT's
	Printed Name and Title: Bradford H. Woodbury-Public Works Director
	Return to Agenda: 


